STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
BUREAU OF HOMELESS AND HOUSING SERVICES

Nicholas A. Toumpas

Commissioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9196 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9196
Mary Ann Cooney Fax: 603-271-5139 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Associate Commissioner

April 28, 2015

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Human Services, Bureau of
Homeless and Housing Services to enter into sole source agreements with the vendors listed in the
table below to provide permanent housing programs to facilitate the movement of homeless individuals
to stable housing and maximum self-sufficiency through the Federal Continuum of Care program in an
amount not to exceed $932,094, effective the dates indicated in the table below or upon Governor and
Executive Council approval, whichever is later, through the completion dates indicated in the table
below. 100% Federal Funding.

Vendor . Effective | Completion
Vendor Number Location Date Date Amount
Center for Life
Management 174116-P001 Derry 07/01/2015 | 06/30/2016 | $268,693
Community Partners
of Strafford County 177200-B004 Dover 07/01/2015 | 06/30/2016 $40,790
Families in Transition | 157730-B001 Concord 07/01/2015 | 06/30/2016 $93,677
Families in Transition | 157730-B001 Concord 07/01/2015 | 06/30/2016 $68,585
Families in Transition | 157730-B001 | Manchester | 09/01/2015 | 08/31/2016 $71,374
Harbor Homes 155358-B001 Nashua 07/01/2015 | 06/30/2016 $200,114
Lakes Region Mental
Health d/b/a Genesis | 154480-B001 Laconia 07/01/2015 | 06/30/2016 $94,571
Behavioral Health
Seacoast Mental
Health Center 174089-P001 | Portsmouth | 07/01/2015 | 06/30/2016 $14,596
Southwestern 177511-P001 Cgﬁ?\/‘;& 07/01/2015 | 06/30/2016 | $79,694
Community Services c ; '
ounties
Total $932,094

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following account in State Fiscal Years 2016 and
2017, with the ability to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office,
without further Governor and Executive Council approval, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS:
HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM

See attachment for Financial Details and Areas Served.
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EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because federal regulations require the Department to specify the
vendor’'s name during the federal, Continuum of Care application process prior to the grant award being
issued. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development scores the applications, then awards
funding based on their criteria. The Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services receives notification of
the awards from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development several months later.
Further, the Department cannot begin new agreements with the community-based agencies prior to
their current contract completion dates; therefore, this package contains one contract for Families in
Transition with a unique effective date. Some agencies, such as Families in Transition, applied for
multiple grants relative to the various locations and services to which award funds will be allocated.

This package includes nine (9) of nine (9) agreements with vendors receiving a competitive
award for renewal funding, and represents $932,094 of a total of $932,094 being funded through the
Continuum of Care program. Based on the continued receipt and availability of federal funds, and
pursuant to these agreements, vendors will utilize Continuum of Care funds to provide and pay for
permanent housing supportive services, rental/leasing assistance, and administrative costs associated
with providing services to homeless individuals and/or families with disabilities to promote the ability of
participants to live more independently.

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development developed the Continuum of Care
concept to support communities in their efforts to address the problems of housing and homelessness
in a coordinated, comprehensive, and strategic fashion. The Continuum of Care serves three main
purposes:

1) A strategic planning process for addressing homelessness in the community.

2) A process to engage broad-based, community-wide involvement in addressing
homelessness on a year-round basis.

3) An opportunity for communities to submit an application to the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development for resources targeting housing and support services for homeless
individuals and families.

The Bureau assures contract compliance and provider performance through the following:

1) Annual compliance reviews are performed that include the collection of data relating to
compliance with administrative rules and contractual agreements.

2) Statistical reports are submitted on a semi-annual basis from all funded providers, including
various demographic information and income and expense reports including match dollars.

3) All providers funded for transitional housing, permanent housing, or outreach services will
be required to maintain timely and accurate data entry on the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System, unless they are required by law to use an alternate data
collection. The NH Homeless Management Information System will be the primary reporting
tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing programs funded through these
contracts.

Should Governor and Executive Council determine not to approve this request, rental
assistance and supportive services for homeless individuals with disabilities and their families may not
be available in their communities, and there will be an increase in demand for services placed upon the
region’s local welfare authorities. Further, an ongoing project may not be able to continue, causing
many individuals and/or families to become homeless. People who are without housing and resources
will resort to seeking shelter in places that are not fit for habitation, or will attempt to travel to shelters in
other communities. This will increase the likelihood that people who are homeless will be in danger of
injury or death, and will be cut off from basic supports for housing, health, education and treatment.
Numerous jobs would also be lost since the shelter and/or resource agency would have to close its
doors or drastically reduce staff.
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Area served: As listed on Continuum of Care Financial Detail Sheet.

Source of funds: 100% Federal Funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development, grant numbers as listed on Continuum of Care Financial Detail Sheet, Office of
Community Planning and Development, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number (CFDA)
#14.267.

In the event that the federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Associate Commissioner

Approved by: b ﬁkﬁ(

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence



Continuum of Care
Financial Detail

Center for Life Management — PH | (Vendor # 174116-P001)

Area Served: Derry, HUD Grant # NH0014L.1T001407

Account Class Title State Fiscal Year Contract Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 2016 $268,693
Sub-total $268,693

Community Partners of Strafford County — Tideview PH for the Disabled (Vendor # 177200-B004)

Area Served: Dover, HUD Grant # NH0022L1T001407

Account Class Title State Fiscal Year Contract Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 2016 $40,790
Sub-total $40,790

Families in Transition — Concord Community Leasing Il (Vendor # 157730-B001)

Area Served: Concord, HUD Grant # NHO060L.1T001402

Account Class Title State Fiscal Year Contract Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 2016 $93,677
Sub-total $93,677
Families in Transition — Concord PH (Vendor # 157730-B001)
Area Served: Concord, HUD Grant # NH0O007L1T001407
Account Class Title State Fiscal Year Contract Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 2016 $68,585
Sub-total $68,585
Families in Transition — PH VI (Vendor # 157730-B001)
Area Served: Manchester, HUD Grant # TBD
Account Class Title State Fiscal Year Contract Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 2016 $59,478
102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 2017 $11,896
Sub-total $71,374

Continuum of Care
Financial Detail
Page 1of 2




Continuum of Care
Financial Detail

Harbor Homes PH Il (Vendor # 155358-B001)
Area Served: Nashua, HUD Grant # TBD

Account Class Title State Fiscal Year Contract Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 2016 $200,114
Sub-total $200,114

Lakes Region Mental Health d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health —
McGrath Street PH (Vendor # 154480-B001) Area Served: Laconia, HUD Grant #

NH0013L1T001407
Account Class Title State Fiscal Year Contract Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 2016 $94,571
Sub-total $94,571

Seacoast Mental Health Center Springbrook PH (Vendor # 174089-P001)

Area Served: Portsmouth, HUD Grant # NHO020L1T001407

Account Class Title State Fiscal Year Contract Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 2016 $14,596
Sub-total $14,596

Southwestern Community Services PH (Vendor # 177511-P001 )
Area Served: Cheshire and Sullivan Counties, HUD Grant # NH0019L1T001407

Continuum of Care
Financial Detail
Page 2 of 2

Account Class Title State Fiscal Year Contract Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 2016 $79,694
Sub-total $79,694
Total $932,094




FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Continuum of Care Program, Permanent Housing,
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1  State Agency Name

Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

1.3  Contractor Name

1.4 Contractor Address

10 Tsienneto Rd
Center For Life Management Derry, NH 03038
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8  Price Limitation
Number
(603) 434-1577 05-95-42-423010-7927-102- June 30, 2016 $268,693

500731

1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency

Eric D. Borrin

1.10  State Agency Telephone Number

(603) 271-9558

1.11 Contray&gnat re
0 /\A

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

/C /ﬂpd

1.13 Acknowledgement State of 14[,{ , County of _Zﬁc,é//)ihd/n

On4,

person
1.12.

/g before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
'whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block

1.13.1

Signatvre of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace
a4 »ﬂ;{
[Seai] \ /ﬂ . /'
; 74

1.13.2 Name and Title of No#ary or Justice of the Peace

TYNDA A SHEGY

Notary Public - New Hompshire
My Commission Expiros August 5, 2019

1.14  State Agency Signature

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

i)
S‘\C OC/Q/t( P \_{W{k&’/%

1.16 Apprw the N.M(ﬁl}/nent of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By:

Director, On:

1.17  Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

o A\ Aot - s

1.18 Approval by the G¥vernor and Execufjvé Council

By:

aJIs
i

On:

Vv
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State”), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor™) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of 4 \ﬁ/
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination

Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be

attached and are incorporated herein by refereltzyyx
Page 3 of 4

Contractor Initials: _
bae: 27/ 277075



certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers” Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers” Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24, ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Continuum of Care Program
1. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT

1.1.

Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the
State are contingent upon receipt of federal funds under the Continuum of Care Grant.
The State has applied for the Continuum of Care Grant and will continue to perform due
diligence in the application process. However, the State makes no representation that it
will receive the funds. In no event shall the State be liable for costs incurred or
payment of any services performed by the Contractor prior to the State’s receipt of
federal funds applied for in the Continuum of Care Grant.

2. SERVICES

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

24

2.5.

Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds from the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Continuum of Care Program, the Contractor
shall provide a permanent housing program that shall serve twenty (20) homeless
individuals and families with disabilities.

The goal of this program is to facilitate the movement of homeless individuals and
families to permanent housing and maximum self-sufficiency.

To be eligible for contract services, individuals and families must be homeless as
defined in HUD regulations. The Contractor must obtain and retain appropriate
documentation.

The Contractor shall provide these services according to HUD regulations as outlined in
Public Law 102-550, 24 CFR Part 578 Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid
Transition to Housing: Continuum of Care Program interim rule, and other written HUD
policies and directives.

Each program participant shall have an employment assessment and employment
goals included in the individual service plan, as appropriate.

3. PROGRAM REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

CLMPHI

The Contractor shall submit the following reports:

3.1.1. Annual Performance Report: Within thirty (30) days after the Completion Date, an
Annual Performance Report (APR) shall be submitted to the BHHS that
summarizes the results of the Project Activities, showing in particular how the
Project Activities have been performed. The Annual Performance Report shall
be in the form required or specified by the State.

3.1.2. Other Reports as requested by the State.

All programs under this contract are required to be licensed to provide client level data
into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS).
Programs under this contract must be familiar with and follow NH HMIS policy, including
specific information that is required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time
required for data entry. Current NH HMIS policy can be accessed electronically through
the following website: http://www.nh-hmis.org.

Failure to submit the above reports or enter data into NH-HMIS in a timely fashion could
result in the delay or withholding of reimbursements until such reports are received or
data entries are confirmed by the BHHS.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

4. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION

4.1.

4.2

4.3.
44.

4.5.

The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff attend all meetings or trainings
requested by the BHHS. To the extent possible, BHHS shali notify the contractor of the
need to attend such meetings five working days in advance of each meeting.

The Bureau Administrator of BHHS or designee may observe performance, activities
and documents under this Agreement; however, these personnel may not unreasonably
interfere with contractor performance.

The Contractor shall inform BHHS of any staffing changes.

Contract records shall be retained for a period of five (5) years following completion of
the contract and receipt of final payment by the Contractor, or until an audit is
completed and all questions arising there from are resolved, whichever is later.

Changes to the contract services that do not affect its scope, duration, or financial
limitations may be made upon mutual agreement between the Contractor and the
BHHS.

5. FINANCIAL

51.

Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor shall utilize
Continuum of Care Program agreement value specified in Exhibit B of this agreement
from the HUD Continuum of Care Program, for contract services.

5.1.1. Operating Expenses

5.1.1.1. Eligible operating expenses include maintenance and repair of housing,
property taxes and insurance (including property and car), scheduled
payments to reserve for replacement of major systems of the housing
(provided that the payments must be based on the useful life of the
system and expected replacement cost), building security for a structure
where more than fifty percent of the units or area is paid for with grant
funds, utilities (including electricity, gas and water), furniture and
equipment.

5.1.1.2. Ineligible costs include rental assistance and operating costs in the same
project, operating costs of emergency shelter- and supportive service-
only facilities, maintenance and repair of housing where the costs of
maintaining and repairing the housing are included in the lease.

5.1.2. Supportive Services

5.1.2.1. Eligible supportive services costs must comply with all HUD regulations
in 24 CFR 578.53. Eligible services are available to those individuals
actively participating in the permanent housing program.

5.1.2.2. Eligible costs include mental health services, case management
services, salaries of Contractor staff providing supportive services,
reasonable one-time moving costs (truck rental and hiring a moving
company), child-care costs for establishing and operating child care, and
providing child-care vouchers for children from families experiencing
homelessness (including providing meals and snacks and
comprehensive and coordinated developmental activities), education
services, employment assistance and job training skills, housing search
and counseling services, legal services (fees charged by licensed
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attorneys and by person(s) under the supervision of licensed attorneys,
for advice and representation in matters that interfere with the homeless
individual or family's ability to obtain and retain housing), outpatient
health services, transportation services, and utility deposits.

5.1.2.3. Ineligible costs include staff training, fundraising, conference attendance,
and court fines incurred by participants.

5.1.3. Rental Assistance

CA/DHHS/100213
CLMPHI

5.1.3.1. Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for homeless individuals
and families. Rental assistance cannot be provided to a program
participant who is already receiving rental assistance, or living in a
housing unit receiving rental assistance or operating assistance through
other federal, State, or local sources.

5.1.3.2. The rental assistance may be short term, up to 3 months of rent; medium
term, for 3-24 months; or long-term, for longer than 24 months of rent
and must be administered in accordance with the policies and
procedures established by the Continuum as set forth in 24 CFR
578.7(a)(9) and 24 CFR 578.51.

5.1.3.3. Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to
exceed 2 months of rent. An advance payment of the last month’s rent
may be provided to the landlord, in addition to the security deposit and
payment of first month’s rent.

5.1.3.4. Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit if the rent is reasonable.
The contractor must determine whether the rent charged for the unit
receiving rental assistance is reasonable in relation to rents being
charged for comparable unassisted units, taking into account the
location, size, type, quality, amenities, facilities, and management and
maintenance of each unit.

5.1.3.5. The Contractor may use grant funds in an amount not to exceed one
month’s rent to pay for any damage to housing due to the action of a
program participant.

5.1.3.6. Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housing codes,
licensing requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act,
and any other requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is
located regarding the condition of the structure and operation of the
housing or services.

5.1.3.7. The Contractor must provide one of the following types of rental
assistance: Tenant-based, Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental
assistance as described by HUD in 24 CFR 578.51.

5.1.3.8. Tenant-based rental assistance is rental assistance in which program
participants choose housing of an appropriate size in which to reside.
When necessary to facilitate the coordination of supportive services,
recipients and sub recipients may require program participants to live in
a specific area for their entire period of participation, or in a specific
structure for the first year and in a specific area for the remainder of their
period of participation. Short and medium term rental assistance
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provided under the Rapid ReHousing program component must be
tenant based rental assistance.

5.1.3.9. Sponsor-based rental assistance is provided through contracts between
the recipient and sponsor organization. A sponsor may be a private,
nonprofit organization, or a community mental health agency established
as a public nonprofit organization. Program participants must reside in
housing owned or leased by the sponsor.

5.1.3.10. Project-based rental assistance is provided through a contract with the
owner of an existing structure, where the owner agrees to lease the
subsidized units to program participants. Program participants will not
retain rental assistance if they move.

5.1.3.11.For project-based, sponsor-based, or tenant-based rental assistance,
program participants must enter into a lease agreement for a term of at
least one year, which is terminable for cause. The leases must be
automatically renewable upon expiration for terms that are a minimum of
one month long, except on prior notice by either party.

5.1.4. Administrative Costs

5.1.4.1. Administrative costs include: Preparing program budgets, schedules and
amendments, developing systems for assuring compliance with program
requirements, developing interagency agreements and agreements with
sub recipients and contractors to carry out program activities, preparing
reports and other documents related to the program for submission to
HUD, evaluating program results against stated objectives, travel costs
incurred for official business in carrying out the program, administrative
services performed under third party contracts or agreements (including
such services as general legal services, accounting services, and audit
services), and other costs for goods and services required for
administration of the program (including such goods and services as
rental or purchase of equipment, insurance, utilities, office supplies, and
rental and maintenance, but not purchase, of office space).

5.2. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD regulations
and policies described in 24 CFR 578.73 (a) (b) (c).

5.2.1. The contractor must match all grant funds except for leasing funds, with no iess
than twenty-five percent of funds or in-kind contributions from other sources.

5.2.2. Match requirements are to be documented with each payment request.

5.3. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible and
allowable costs as stated in Section 5.1 Exhibit A. The Contractor must have written
approval from the State prior to billing for any other expenses.

5.4. The Contractor may charge program participants rent and utilities (heat, hot water);
however, the amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified in HUD
regulations (24 CFR 583.315). Other services such as cable, air conditioning,
telephone, Internet access, cleaning, parking, pool charges, etc. are at the participant's
option.

5.5. The contractor shall have any staff charged in full or part to this contract or counted as
match complete weekly or bi-weekly timesheets.
Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

Continuum of Care Program

The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A —
Continuum of Care Program.

This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

NH General Fund: Not applicable

Federal Funds:

CFDA #: 14.267

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development
Program Title: Continuum of Care Program

Total Amount Continuum of Care Program;

July 1, 2015 - June 30, 2016: not to exceed $268,693

Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program;
Supportive services: $45,000

Leasing or Rental Assistance: $217,056

Administrative costs: $6.637

Total program amount: $268,693

1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund
the Contractor for operations, supportive services, leasing, rental assistance and
administration utilizing funds provided through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) Continuum of Care Program, in an amount not to exceed and for the
time period specified above.

2. REPORTS

As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in
accordance with the regulations that implement OMB Circular A-133. Three (3) copies
of the audited financial report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of the completion
of said report to the State.

2.2. Where the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, within
ninety (90) days after the Completion or Termination Date, one copy of an audited
financial report shall be submitted to the State. Said audit shall be conducted utilizing
the guidelines set forth in “Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program
Activities, and Functions” by the Comptroller General of the United States.
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3. PROJECT COSTS: PAYMENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW BY THE STATE

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean all
expenses directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the
Project Activities, as determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in
accordance with Public Law 102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in
OMB Circular A-87 as revised from time to time and with the rules, regulations, and
guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit subcontractors shall meet the
requirements of OMB Circular A-122.

3.2. Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in
consideration of the satisfactory completion of the services to be performed under this
Agreement, the State agrees to fund the Contractor for operations, supportive services,
leasing, rental assistance and administration utilizing funds provided through the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development Title XIV Housing programs under the
Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act (HEARTH Act),
Subtitle A-Housing Assistance (Public Law 102-550) in an amount not to exceed as
specified above. Reimbursement requests for all Project Costs shall be submitted on a
monthly basis and accompanied by an invoice from the Contractor for the amount of
each requested disbursement along with a payment request form as designated by the
State, which shall be completed and signed by the Contractor. The Contractor shall
provide additional financial information if requested by the State to verify expenses.

3.3. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the
Services, and upon receipt of the Annual Performance Report, Termination Report or
Audited Financial Report, the State may review all Project Costs incurred by the
Contractor and all payments made to date. Upon such review the State shall disallow
any items of expenses that are not determined to be allowable or are determined to be
in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed
expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such disallowance. [f the State disallows
costs for which payment has not yet been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs. Any
amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this agreement are subject to recapture
pursuant to 24 CFR Subsection 576.55. The funds authorized to be expended under
this Agreement shall be used only for operations, supportive services, leasing, rental
assistance and administration or reimbursement for expenditures for operations,
supportive services, leasing, and rental assistance and administration, provided by the
Contractor for the project period and operating years of the Continuum of Care Program
as approved by HUD and in accordance with the Continuum of Care Program
Regulations, published at 24 CFR Part578.

4. USE OF GRANT FUNDS

4.1. The State agrees to provide payment for actual costs, up to the not to exceed amount
for the Continuum of Care Program as specified in this Exhibit, as defined by HUD
under the provisions of P.L. 102-550 and applicable regulations.

4.2. The Contractor may amend the contract budget through line item increases, decreases
or the creation of new line items provided these amendments do not exceed the
contract price. Such amendments shall only be made upon written request to and
written approval from the State.
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4.3. Conformance to OMB Circular A-110: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance
with procedures, requirements, and principles specified in OMB Circular A-110.

5. CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

5.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting
procedures which assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant funds and
any required nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed in
direct operations of the Contractor.

5.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with
Attachment G of A-102, “Standards of Contractor Financial Management Systems” or
such equivalent system as the State may require. Requests for payment shall be made
according to EXHIBIT B, Section 3.2 of this Agreement.
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs; \,Q/ '
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

-
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shail
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use.. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment

Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistieblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor’s performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

-
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.56. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL.: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shail mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract, is deleted and the following
subparagraph is added:

1411 comprehensive general liability insurance against all claims of bodily injury, death or
property damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $1,000,000 per
occurrence with additional general liability umbrella insurance coverage of not less than
$3,000,000 per occurrence; and
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part 1l of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace,

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction,

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check M if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.
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Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. |f any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for

each such failure. |
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or defauilt.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

”ou "o

5. Theterms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

LS

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F — Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initials
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

28
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions

indicated above.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

1) Definitions.

a. ‘Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set’
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. “HITECH Act’ means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIIl, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. \/F/
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“Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

“Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“‘Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
1. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
Il For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

Health Insurance Portability Act
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (l). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

J- Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

K. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

l. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business W/ ‘

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials

Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement —
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

(4)

(5)

(6)

3/2014

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. \/(
v

Exhibit | Contractor Initials
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Exhibit |

e. Segreqgation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the

defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.

W DS (ot / Z// // nﬁ/f%ﬂf
The State | Name of/fe C@ ractof

Signature of Author’lzed Representative

oo Topo
Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorizéd Representative
}4’6\?001/\:&/{/ /\(\,{V\Aftﬂjl/\-/‘ %ff/&éﬂf/&ﬂ
Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative
—— / ull
/[ 15 W7 /5
Date = ' Date /
3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials w

Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement
Page 6 of 6 Date %ﬂ/f



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

2OONPND N

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal

Financial Accountability and Transparency Act. /
. 4
7 / % /44 %/M///V/t
Contractor Name: (e /é%

' e %* , CON

Dat Name: ;7 720 7
Title: ﬁ?g/‘o//jﬂ/ =0

Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials W/

Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance —_
CU/DHHS/110713 Page 1 of 2 Date /45



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1.

2.

4.

The DUNS number for your entity is: S 25 7. 12/&/

In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

l'/ NO YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:
Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount;
Name: Amount;
Name: Amount;
Name: Amount;
Name: Amount;
Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials W

Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance

CU/DHHS/110713 Page 2 of 2 Date
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State of Nefo Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

[, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT is a New Hampshire trade name
registered on June 30, 2003 and that The Mental Health Center for Southern New
Hampshire presently own(s) this trade name. I further certify that it is in good standing as

far as this office is concerned, having paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 2" day of April, A.D. 2015

ity Ll

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, Judith Ryan , do hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of __CLM Center for Life Management
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

e

. o~
the Agency duly held on /s

(Date)
RESOLVED: That the President/CEQ

(Title of Contract Signatory)
is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the 7 dayot Llpsl 2075

(Date ContraCt Signed)
4 Vic Topo is the duly elected President/CEQ
(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)
of the Agency.

Ctits o

(Slgnature of the Rlected Officer)
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of _Rockingham

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this E day of ‘M 20/5

By Judith Ryan
{(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency) /
aa /

otary Pubhc/Jus of the PedCe)
{NCTARY SEAL)

LYNDA A. SILEGY
Commission Expires: Notory Public - New Hompshire
y Commission Expires August 5, 2019

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1, 2005
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
10/28/2014

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

PRODUCER CONTACT Sharon Lambert
Fred C. Church, Inc. NAME:
41 Wellman Street PHONE 9783227264 ‘Fﬁé No): (978) 454-1865
Lowell. MA 01851 E-MALL slambert@fredcchurch.com ]
(800) 225-1865 ADDRESS: :
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
INSURER A : ACE USA
INSURED INSURER B : Ace American Insurance Company 22667
The Mental Health Center For Southem N. H. DBA CLM Center For Life Management - -
INSURER C - LM Insurance Corporation
10 Tsienneto Road
Derry, NH 03038 INSURER D :
INSURERE :
INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: *3% REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN iS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

NSR ADDL|SUBR POLICY EFF_| POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE | WVD POLICY NUMBER MM/DD/YYYY) | (MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS
GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
X DAMAGE TO RENTED 250,000
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PREMISES (Ea occurrence) | $
| cLAMs-MADE OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) | § 10.000
8 SVRD37797649 10/1/2014 1002015 | pERsONAL & ADVINJURY | § 1000.000
GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 3.000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | § 000,000
POLICY FRO: Loc $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT 1,000,000
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY Earaentont R
X | any auTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
A AL 8;VNED iﬁ%ts)ULED CALH08613059 10/1/2014 101172015 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE 3
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
$
X | UMBRELLA LIAB X | occur EACH OCCURRENCE g 3:000,000
B EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE X00G25489220005 10/1/2014 100172015 | 4 oo GATE ¢ 3,000,000
oo | X | retenmions 1000 $
WORKERS COMPENSATION X | WC STATU- oTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YiN TORY LIMITS ER 500,000
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNEREXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ >
C | OFEICERMEMBeR EXeLUBEDS D NIA WC5315607601014 10/1/2014 10/1/2015 T, 500000
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| § *O
if yes, describe under ,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS beiow E.L. DISEASE - PoLICY LMiT | § 5%
$4,000,000 Per Occurrence
$6,000,000 General Aggregate
B | Professional Liability CRLG25499268005 10/1/2014 10/1/2015 Claims Made Retro Date: 7/1/1986

2l?)E‘I“sCRIPTlON OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

NH Division of Behavioral Health
Sandy LawrenceContracts Admin.
105 Pleasant St.

Concord, NH 03301-3861

|

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Client# 120 Mst# o 1344

ACORD 25 (2010/05)

Cert Holder # 8968

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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MISSION STATEMENT

To promote behavioral health and
emotional well-being of individuals,
families and organizations.

We accomplish this through professional,
individualized, comprehensive services
and by partnering with other
organizations that share our philosophy.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors of
The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire
d/b/a/ CLM Center for Life Management and Affiliates

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Mental Health
Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a/ CLM Center for Life Management and Affiliates (a
nonprofit organization), which are comprised of the consolidated statement of financial position
as of June 30, 2014, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses,
and cash flows for the year.then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion. :



Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a/ CLM Center for Life
Management and Affiliates as of June 30, 2014, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

The financial statements of The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a/ CLM Center
for Life Management and Affiliates as of June 30, 2013, were audited by other auditors whose report
dated October 1, 2013, expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements. In our opinion, the
summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.
Refer to Note for additional information regarding comparative information.

Other Matters
Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The supplementary information on pages 16-22 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not
a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 10,
2014, on our consideration of The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a/ CLM Center
for Life Management and Affiliates internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering The Mental Health Center for Southern
New Hampshire d/b/a/ CLM Center for Life Management and Affiliates internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

/%W Mf I e

Essex Junction, Vermont
Registration number VT092.0000684
October 10, 2014



THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
June 30,2014 and 2013

ASSETS
2014 2013
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 684,160 $ 429,199
Restricted cash 126,842 124,439
Accounts receivable, net 1,174,229 907,893
Other receivables 161,077 141,960
Prepaid expenses 94,950 62,886
Total current assets 2,241,258 1,666,377
Property and equipment, net 4,169,523 4,416,653
Finance costs, net 344,696 362,964
Total assets : $ 6,755,477 $ 6.445.994
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities:
Line of credit $ 125,000 $ -
Current portion of long-term debt 80,000 108,809
Accounts payable 58,476 76,018
Accrued payroll and payroll liabilities 184,022 153,878
Accrued vacation 272,871 274,697
Accrued interest 46,830 49,000
Accrued expenses 44317 39,532
Total current liabilities 811,516 701,934
Long-term-debt less current portion 3,265,000 3,368,380
Total liabilities 4,076,516 4,070,314
Net assets - unrestricted 2,678,961 2,375,680
Total liabilities and unrestricted net assets $ 6,755477 $ 6.445.994

See notes to financial statements

-3-



THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Consolidated Statements of Activities

Years ended June 30,2014 and 2013

Public support and revenues:

Public support:
Federal
State of New Hampshire - BBH
State and local funding
Other public support
Total public support

Revenues:
Program service fees, net
Other service income
Rental income
Other
Gain on sale of building
Total revenues
Total public support and revenues

Expenses:
BBH funded programs:

Children
Elders
Vocational
Beaver Lake Lodge
Multi-Service
Acute Care
Independent Living
Assertive Community Treatment
Non-Specialized Outpatient
Non-BBH funded program services
Total program expenses
Administrative expenses
Total expenses

Change in net assets
Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

2014 2013

$ 1,053,327 § 970,014
222,954 222,955
48,295 47,400
31,262 38,322
1,355,838 1,278,691
10,429,373 9,964,952
464,564 365,753
81,374 83,794
51,237 19,140

80,182 -
11,106,730 10,433,639
12,462,568 11,712,330
3,361,775 3,182,135
272,311 287,693
234,468 285,723
874,974 828,851
1,550,062 1,458,738
708,911 662,924
1,747,909 1,746,387
459,474 409,008
1,353,207 1,338,833
595,134 535,639
11,158,225 10,735,931
1,001,062 889,225
12,159,287 11,625,156
303,281 87,174
2,375,680 2,288,506
$ 2,678,961 $ 2375,680

See notes to financial statements

-4.-
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

2014 2013
Cash flows from operating activities:
Increase in net assets $ 303,281 % 87,174
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets

to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 232,032 225,690
Gain on sale of building (80,182) -
(Increase) decrease in:
Restricted cash (2,403) (35,569)
Accounts receivable, net (266,336) (65,395)
Other receivables (19,117) 31,991
Prepaid expenses (32,064) (8,555)
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 13,391 5,536
Deferred revenue - (12,000)
Net cash provided by operating activities 148,602 228,872

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from sale of property 200,335 -

Purchases of property and equipment (80,833) (38,789)

Finance costs (5,954) -
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 113,548 (38,789)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Net borrowing (payments) on line of credit 125,000 (200,000)
Principal payments on long term debt (132,189) (72,330)
Net cash used in financing activities (7,189) (272,330)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 254,961 (82,247)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 429,199 511,446
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 684,160 § 429,199

Supplemental cash flow disclosures:
Cash paid during the year for interest $§ 130439 § 125,299

See notes to financial statements
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Note 1.

Note 2.

THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30,2014 and 2013

Nature of organization

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life
Management (the “Agency”) is a not-for-profit corporation, organized under New Hampshire
law to provide services in the areas of mental health and related non-mental health programs.

West Rock Endowment Association, Inc. (the “Association”) was a title holding company as
defined by the Internal Revenue Service, whose sole purpose was to lease its real estate
holdings to qualifying exempt organizations. It is affiliated with The Mental Health Center
for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life Management trough common board
members. The Association was dissolved in June 2014. Refer to Note 12 for additional
information of the dissolution.

During 2006, the Center for Life Management Foundation (the “Foundation™) was
established to act for the benefit of, to carry out the functions of, and to assist the Agency. It
is affiliated with The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center
for Life Management through common board members and management. In addition, the
Agency is the sole member.

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life
Management, West Rock Endowment Association, Inc., and the Center for Life Management
Foundation are collectively referred to the “Organization”.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of The Mental Health Center for
Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLLM Center for Life Management and its Affiliates, West
Rock Endowment Association, Inc. and the Center for Life Management Foundation. All
intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Basis of accounting and summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Under this basis,
revenues, other than contributions, and expenses are reported when incurred, without regard
to date of receipt or payment of cash. Contributions are reported in accordance with FASB
Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Accounting for Contributions Received and
Contributions Made.

Basis of presentation

The Organization’s financial statement presentation is required by the Not-for-Profit
Presentation of Financial Statements topic of the FASB ASC. The Organization is required
to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following
three classifications of net assets based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions.

Unrestricted net assets — Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions.




Note 2.

THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Basis of accounting and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Temporarily restricted net assets — Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions that
may or will be met, either by actions of the Organization and/or the passage of time.
When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted
net assets and reported in the consolidated statement of activities as net assets released
from restrictions.

Permanently restricted net assets — Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions that
they be maintained permanently by the Organization. Generally, the donors of these
assets permit the Organization to use all or part of the income earned on any related
investments for general or specific purposes.

At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Organization had no temporarily or permanently restricted net
assets.

General

The significant accounting policies of the Organization are presented to assist in
understanding the Organization’s financial statements. The financial statements and the notes
are representations of the Organization’s management. The Organization is responsible for
the integrity and objectivity of the financial statements.

Use of estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing these financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Those estimates and assumptions
affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities, and the reported revenue and expenses. Actual results could vary from the
estimates that were used.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Organization considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity
of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. Cash equivalents include savings,
money market accounts, and certificates of deposits.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Management writes off accounts when they are deemed uncollectible and
establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated uncollectible amounts. The
Organization had an allowance for doubtful accounts of $371,644 and $371,480 as of June
30,2014 and 2013, respectively. Refer to Note 4 for additional discussion of accounts
receivable.

Property

Property is recorded at cost, except for donated assets which are recorded at estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Depreciation is computed on the straight line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets as follows:

Buildings and improvements 15 — 40 years
Automobiles 3 — 15 years
Equipment 5 -7 years



Note 2.

THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Basis of accounting and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

All equipment valued at $500 or more is capitalized. Expenditures for repairs and
maintenance are expensed when incurred and betterments are capitalized. Assets sold or
otherwise disposed of are removed from the accounts, along with the related accumulated
depreciation, and any gain or loss is recognized.

Depreciation expense was $207,809 and $208,043 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and
2013, respectively.

Finance costs

Financing costs are recorded on the statement of position net of accumulated amortization.
The costs are amortized over the term of the respective financing arrangement. Amortization
expense was $24,223 and $17,647 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Vacation pay and fringe benefits

Vacation pay is accrued and charged to programs when earned by the employee. Fringe
benefits are allocated to the appropriate program expense based on the percentage of actual
time spent on programs.

Fair value measurements and financial instruments

The Company adopted FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, for assets
and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis. The codification established a
common definition for fair value to be applied to existing generally accepted accounting
principles that requires the use of fair value measurements, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and expands disclosure about such fair value measurements.

FASB ASC 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. Additionally, FASB ASC 820 requires the use of valuation techniques that
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. These
inputs are prioritized as follows:

e Level I: Observable market inputs such as quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;

e Level 2: Observable market inputs, other than quoted prices in active markets, that
are observable either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3: Unobservable inputs where there is little or no market data, which require
the reporting entity to develop its own assumptions.

The Organization’s financial instruments consist primarily of cash, accounts receivables,
accounts payable and accrued expenses. The carrying amount of the Organization's financial
instruments approximates their fair value due to the short-term nature of such instruments.

The carrying value of long-term debt approximates fair value due to their bearing
interest at rates that approximate current market rates for notes with similar maturities
and credit quality.



Note 2.‘

THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Basis of accounting and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as increases in unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or
permanently restricted net assets, depending on the existence or nature of any donor
restrictions.

All donor-restricted contributions received are reported as increases in temporarily or
permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of the restriction. When a
restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and
reported in the statement of support, revenues, and expenses as net assets released from
restrictions.

Restricted contributions that meet the restriction in the same reporting period are reported as
increases in unrestricted net assets.

Third-party contractual arrangements

A significant portion of revenue is derived from services to patients insured by third-party
payers. Reimbursements from Medicare, Medicaid, and other commercial payers are at
defined service rates for services rendered to patients covered by these programs are received.
The difference between the established billing rates and the actual rate of reimbursement is
recorded as an allowance when received. A provision for estimated contractual allowances is
provided on outstanding patient receivables at the statement of financial position date.

Advertising expenses
The Organization expenses advertising costs as they are incurred.

Expense allocation

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Income taxes

The Agency is a non-profit organization exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code. The Agency has also been classified as an entity that is not a
private foundation within the meaning of 509(a) and qualifies for deductible contributions.

The Association was a 501(c)(2) title holding company whose sole purpose is to lease its real
estate holdings to qualifying organizations. The Association was dissolved in June 2014.

The Foundation is a non-profit organization exempt from income taxes under Section

501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. It is an organization that is organized and operated
exclusively for the benefit of the Agency.

-10 -



Note 2.

Note 3.

Note 4.

THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Basis of accounting and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

These financial statements follow FASB ASC, Accounting for Uncertain Income Taxes,
which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and measurement of
tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. Accounting for Uncertain Income
Taxes did not have a material impact on these financial statements as the Organization
believes it has taken no uncertain tax positions that could have an effect on its financial
statements.

Federal Form 990 (Return of an Organization Exempt from Income Tax) for fiscal years
2011, 2012 and 2013 are subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three years after
filing.

Comparative financial statements

The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in
total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to
constitute a presentation in conformity with GAAP. Accordingly, such information should be
read in conjunction with the Organization’s financial statements for the year ending June 30,
2013, from which the summarized information was derived.

Subsequent events
The Organization has evaluated all subsequent events through October 10, 2014, the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.

Restricted cash

As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Organization had restricted cash of $126,842 and
$124,439, respectively. The amounts represent cash which is restricted for debt service
requirements, as designated by the Series 2006 bonds.

Accounts receivable, net

Accounts receivable consist of the following at June 30,:

2014 2013
Receivable Receivable

Accounts receivable  Receivable Allowance Net Receivable Allowance Net
Clients $ 534,588 $ (313,184) $§ 221,404 $ 540,356 $ (344,265) $ 196,091
Insurance companies 131,465 4,734) 126,731 151,163 (6,873) 144,290
Medicaid 602,084 (17,788) 584,296 455,647 (9,697) 445,950
Medicare 277,736 (35.938) 241,798 132,207 (10,645) 121,562

$1,545,873 $_(371,644) $_1,174229  $1,279,373 $_(371,480) $_ 907,893
Other receivables 2014 2013
Towns $ 19,500 $ 21,500
NH Division of Mental Health 68,582 72,025
Miscellaneous 72.995 48,435

$__ 161,077 $__ 141,960
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Note 5. Concentrations of credit risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Organization to concentrations of credit risk
consist of the following:

2014 2013
Receivables primarily for services provided
to individuals and entities located in
southern New Hampshire $ 1,174,229 h) 907,893
Other receivables due from entities located
in New Hampshire $ 161,077 $ 141,960

Bank balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) for up to
the prevailing FDIC limit. At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Organization had approximately
$96,000 and $0 in uninsured cash balances.

Note 6. Property

Property and equipment consists of the following at June 30:

2014 2013

Land $ 632,418 $ 687,307
Buildings and improvements 4,175,624 4,475,044
Automobiles 93,388 89,335
Equipment 1,401,055 1,613,141

6,302,485 6,864,827
Less: accumulated depreciation (2.169.493) (2,489.568)

4,132,992 4,375,259
Construction in progress 36,531 41,394
Property and equipment, net $_ 4,169,523 $__ 4,416,653

Note 7. Line of credit

As of June 30, 2014, the Organization has a demand line of credit with People’s United Bank
with a borrowing capacity of $1,500,000, which is available through December 31, 2014, the
annual review date. Interest accrued on the outstanding principal balance is payable monthly
at prime plus 0.25%,; provided, however, at no time shall the interest rate be less than 4.00%.
The outstanding balance on the line at June 30, 2014 was $125,000. The line of credit is
secured by all business assets and real estate.

As of June 30, 2013, the Organization had a demand line of credit with People’s United Bank
with a borrowing capacity of $750,000. Interest accrued on the outstanding principal balance
is payable monthly at prime plus 0.25%, provided, however, at no time shall the interest rate
be less than 5.00%. The outstanding balance on the line at June 30, 2013 was $0. The line of
credit is secured by all business assets and real estate.
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Note 8.

Note 9.

THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Long term debt

Long term debt consists of the following as of June 30,:

2014 2013
People’s United Bank -
Mortgage payable in monthly principal and
interest installments of $2,489, with interest
fixed at 5.823%, secured by certain real estate.
Mortgage was paid off in 2014. $ - $ 57,189
Series 2006 New Hampshire Health and
Education Facilities Bond-
Payable through 2036, original principal of
$3,700,000, remarketed and sold to Centrix
Bank December 2011 at 2.80% per annum. 3,345,000 3,420,000
Total long term debt 3,345,000 3,477,189
Less: current portion of long term debt (80.000) (108.809)
Long term debt, less current portion $_ 3,265,000 $_ 3,368,380
Future maturities of long term debt are as follows:
Year ending June 30,
2015 $ 80,000
2016 85,000
2017 90,000
2018 95,000
2019 100,000
Thereafter 2.895.000
Total $__ 3,345,000

In accordance with the Series 2006 bond issuance, there is a ten-year letter of credit
commitment (currently with People’s United Bank) to support the tax-exempt bonds issue.
An 0.85% fee on the outstanding letter of credit balance is required. During the years ending
June 30, 2014 and 2013, fees were incurred on the outstanding letter of credit, which are
included in interest expense.

The bonds are secured by land, building, equipment, and certain revenues. The Organization
is subject to certain financial covenants required by the bonds.

Employee benefit plan

Discretionary matching contributions to a tax-deferred annuity plan qualified under Section
403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code are contingent upon financial condition. This program
covers eligible regular full-time and part-time employees who have successfully completed at
least one year of employment and work at least 20 hours per week. Eligible employees may
make contributions to the plan up to the maximum amount allowed by the Internal Revenue
Code if they wish. Employer contributions totaled $61,383 and $0 for the years ending June
30,2014 and 2013, respectively.
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Note 10.

Note 11.

Note 12.

THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Commitments and contingencies

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire, d/b/a CLM Center for Life
Management, has entered into an agreement with Parkland Medical Center ("PMC") of
Derry, New Hampshire, effective June 1, 2013, and will expire on December 31, 2014,
whereby CLM provides psychiatric services and consultations to inpatients of PMC for the
hospital medical and nursing staff. The consultations are requested by the hospital and
responded to by CLM medical staff on an on-call basis. In addition to the psychiatric
services, CLM provides emergency mental health assessments, evaluations, and referral
services to the emergency department ("ED") of the hospital. CLM emergency service
clinicians are available on a twenty-four hour, seven days a week basis to see patients
entering the ED who are experiencing a mental health crisis or psychiatric emergency.

For the years ending June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Agency received approximately 58% and
57%, respectively, of its total revenue in the form of Medicaid reimbursements. Being a
State of New Hampshire designated Community Mental Health Center affords the Agency
Medicaid provider status. Annual contracting with New Hampshire Department of health and
Human Services-Bureau of Behavioral Health provides a base allocation of state general
funds that can betaken as a grant or pledged in full or in part for leveraging matching federal
Medicaid dollars.

Lease commitments

The Agency leases facilities under various operating leases. Rent expense recorded under
these arrangements was approximately $63,000 and $85,000 for the years ended June 30,
2014 and 2013, respectively.

The following details the future minimum lease payments on leases with an initial or
remaining term of greater than one year as of June 30, 2014:

Year ending June 30,

2015 $ 105,954
2016 109,947
2017 109,947
2018 117,773
2019 117,773

Total h) 561,394

Dissolution

The Board of Directors of West Rock Endowment Association, Inc. executed a Statement of
Dissolution effective June 25, 2014. The Statement of Dissolution included a provision that
all remaining assets be distributed to the related 501(c)(3) organization, The Mental Health
Center for Southern New Hampshire, d/b/a/ CLM Center for Life Management.

In accordance with FASB Accounting Standards Codification section 860, the distribution of

the remaining assets is accounted for as a sale of financial assets in which a gain or loss is
recognized in an amount equal to the assets transferred, net of any liabilities assumed.
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Note 10.

THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Dissolution (continued)

The transfer resulted in cash of $205,123 being transferred from the Association to CLM and
$32,027 being transferred to CLM as a payoff on the People’s United mortgage payble
discussed in Note 8. The resulting transfers of $237,150 are reported as gain on transfer of
assets for CLM and loss from transfer of assets for the Association. The amounts are
appropriately eliminated in consolidation.
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION




IOﬂl
LLV'SSL9 § - § LL¥'SSL'9O § o1cvel § - $ L91°1¢€99
196°8L9°C - 196°8L9°C 01€ YT - 1S9°%SS°T
91$9L0°Y - 915°9L0°Y - - 91$9L0Y
000°59Z°¢ - 00069Z°¢ - - 000°69Z°¢
916118 - 916118 - - 916118
LIE Y - LIEYY - - L1EvY
0£g‘or - 0£8°9Y - - 0£8°9Y
1L8°TLT - 1L8°TLT - - 1L8TLT
20781 - 081 - - T20°v81
9L¥'8S - 9L1°8S - - 9L1°8S
000°08 - 00008 - - 000°08
000521 $ - $ 000sz1  $ - $ - $ 000°STI
LLV'SSL'9 § - § LLY'SSLO § olcvel  § - $ L91°1€99
969°v € - 9697 € - - 9697 ¢
£25°691°F - £25°691°t - - €25°691°Y
85T 1¥TT - 8STIVTT 1En74! - 8Y6'911°C
0566 - 0S6't6 - - 0S6°v6
LLOT9] - LLOT9I - - LLOT91T
6T VLI - 6ZTYLI'I - - 6T VLI
8971 - 89T - - ¥8°9T1
091°'v89  $ - $ 09189 $ oI€VZl  $ - $ 0$8°6SS
pareprjosuc)) suoneurwi|g [e10], uonepuno,y JUSWMmopuyg SEINERENE N
WTD o0y 1o QJIT 10} 193ud)

¥10T ‘0¢ dunf

UONISO  JO JudwaeI§ Suneprjosuo)

uoday stoupny uapuadapuy 395

S19SSE 19U PajolIISaIuN pue Sanjiqel| [ejo L
PRIOLISAIUN - SIASSE JAN

soniiqel| (g0,
uoruod JuaLINg SsI[ 1gop-utd-Juo

SOIN([IqEl| JUALIND B0,
sasuadxa panlooy
1S2191U] PANIOOY
UOTJEORA PaNIody
sanjiqel| [j0iked pue jjoiked panidoy
Jlqeded sjunoooy
19ap wu93-3uoj Jo uoriod jualiny)
1IPaId JO Ul
‘Senljiqel] JusLIng

SLASSV LN ANV SAILLI'TIEVIT

S19sSe [B10 ],

13U ‘S1S00 duRUL
1au ‘quawdinbe pue Auadoig

S}ISSE JUALIND [BI0L
sasuadxa predaidg
S9[qBAISAI J3YIO

JoU ‘9[qBAI9I3I SIUNODIY
yseo paioLnsy

Siua[eAInba yseo pue yse))

1$19sSE JUaLIND

SLASSV

SALVITIAAV ANV INFGWIDVNVIN 4417 404 JdLNID WD v/d/ad
AYIHSAWVH MAN NIFHLNOS Y04 ¥91INID HLTVAH TVLNIW dHL



IN.—I
Y669 $ - § veeStt9 § LSL6TT S IveSyl $ 96TvLI9  §
089°SLE°T - 089°SLET LSL'STI 146°S¥1 786°€01°C
Y1€0L0Y - FIEOLOY - - PIEOLOY
08€°89¢€°¢ - 08¢€89¢€°¢ - - 08€°89¢°¢
Y€6°10L - F€6°10L - - y€6°10L
T€S'6¢ - zeS6¢ - - z€5°6¢
000°6Y - 000°6Y - - 000°6¥
L69VLT - L69'VLT - - L69'VLT
8L8°€ST - 8.8°¢SI - - 8L8°CSI
810°9L - 8109L - - 210°9L
608801  $ - $ 608801 $ - $ - $ 608801 $
v66°Stv'9 $ - § ve6Sty9 § [SLsel S ivesyl $ 96TYLI9  §
$96°T9¢ - ¥96°79¢ - - ¥96°79¢
€59'91v'v - £59914't - €L9°8C1 086°L8T‘Y
LLE 999 ( - LLE999°| LSL'STL 897°LI TSEETS T
988°C9 - 98879 - - 98879
096°1H1 - 096 1t1 - - 096 191
£68°L06 - £68°L06 - - £68°'L06
6EY VT - 6EY 11 - - 6EY YL
6616z  $ - $ 66l1°6ZF $§ LSL'STI $ 89T'LI $ tL1°98C $
paleprjosuc)) SsuoONEUTWI[g 18101 uorepuno j Judwmopuyg JUSTUIZBUR N
W10 o0y ISaM 9} 10} JJUd)

€102 “0¢ sung

UOIISO JO JusweIS§ SuUlepijosuo)
SALVITIHAAV ANV INFWEDVNVIA d417T 404 YdLNID WD v/d/a
THIHSdWVH MAN NYFHLNOS ¥Od YdINdD HLTVAH TVINAN dHL

uoday sionpny juapuadapuf 29§

SIOSSE JaU PIIDLIISAIUN pue SANIqel] [elo ],
PaJoLIISAIUN - SJASSE 1aN

SINIqeEl JE10],
uo1od Juaimo ssaf 1qop-uLig)-3uor]

SanIjIqel] JUSLIND [BO],
sasuadxa paniooy
1S219)ul PaNIdOY
UOJBORA PANIOOY
saniqer| [[oiked pue [joiAed paniooy
a|qeAed sunoosoy
1Qap uLRI-3uO[ Jo uonuod Juaimn)

‘sanl[iqel] yuauny

S14SSV LAN ANV SAILI'TIg VI

SJosse [Blo],

19U “S)S02 douRUL
19u quawdinba pue Auadoig

$)9SSE JUALIND [BI0],
sasuadxa predaig
S9|qBAID IO
19U ‘3[QBAI30I SIUNOIDY
YSed paionsay
syuajeainba yses pue yse)
1539s8R JUALIND

SLASSV



l@ﬁl
196'8L9°T § - $ 196'8L9°T $ O0IE£+TI - 169°%SS'C  §
089°SLE'T - 089°GLE'T LSL'STI 1v6°SP1 786°€01°C
182°€0€ - 187°€0€ (Lop'1) (1¥6°SP1) 69905t
L8T651°71  (059°6ST) LE6BIY'TI  £££'9¢ 90L'8%C 868°¢€1"Cl
- (0S1°L£T) 0S1°LET - 0S1°L£T -
L8T651°T1  (005°TD L8LI81TI £€€°9¢ 9SS°11 868°€£I°TI
790°100°1 - 790°100°1 - - 790°100°1
sessiil (00s°TY) STLOSIIL  €£€'9¢ 98$°11 9€8°TEI°I 1
AR (00s°70) y€9°L19 £€£°9¢ 9SS 1T SPL'69S
LOT'ESE" - LOT'ESE'] - - LOT'ESE"L
vLY'6SY - YLV'6SY - - vLY 65t
606°LYL 1 - 606°LYL ] - - 606°LYL ]
116°80L - 116°80L - - 116'80L
790°0551 - 790°08S°1 - - 790°0$S°1
vL6'VLS - YLO6'YLS - - vL6'PLS
89V V€T - 89¥'PET - - 89p°bET
11€°2LT - 11£°2LT - - 11€TLT
SLL19E'E - SLLY9E'E - - SLL'19E'E
895°79F°T1  (0$9°650) 8I1T°TTLTI  988°bE §9L°T01 L9Sb8S"TI
0£L°901°TT  (0S9°657) 08€°99¢° 11T 988°F¢ §9L°701 6CL'8TT11
- 0S1°L£D) 0SI°LET - - 0S1°LET
781°08 - 781°08 - 781°08 -
LET'TS - LETIS 988°F¢ £8 89791
pLETS (00§°C0) vL8'€01 - 00$°CC pLEIS
$9S pob - r9S V9P - - v9$ 49t
£LE6TY01 - €LE6TY 01 - - €LE6THOI
8€8°65E1 - 8€8°65¢ ] - - 8€8°6SE T
9T1€ - 9T 1€ - - 9T1€
S6T'8Y - $67°8Y - - S6T'8P
¥$6'TTT - ¥56'T7C - - $$6'TTT
LTEESO'T § - $ LTeesor 80 - - LTEESO'T  §
DPAIEpIOSUC))  Sucheuwlwiyg ) UoNEpuUno,]  JUSWIMOpUY  JUSWOSBUR
W10 FOOY IS 91T 10j Jatua)

P10T ‘0€ sunf papud Jes & 3y} 1o
SANIAIDY JO Juawael§ Sunepljosuo))
SHLVITIAAV ANV INFNHOVNVIN 9417 404 YILNID WD v/d/a
TIHSAANVH MEAN NIFHLNOS YO YAINIO HLTVHH TVINIW dHL

Uoday sJonpny juapuadapuy 205

T3k JO Pud ‘s1a8se 19N
IBa4 Jo Sutuuidaq ‘s)asse JoN
sjasse jou ul a8urey))

$3550] pure sasuadxoa [e10],
S13SSE JO 19JSURl) WOolj SS0]

sasuadxa 1810 ],
sasuadxs sAapensIWIWpY

sasuadxa urei3oud [ejo |
sa91A15s uresSosd pspunj HEH-UON

wonedinQ pazifeoadg-uoN
JusUIeal | ANUNWWOY) SAILISSSY

Juiary yuspuadapuj
ar) amoy
201AI3G- BN
23por] ayer] 19AR0g
[BUOIIBIOA

SI3prd

uaIpPYD
:surex§oud popuny HAg

Sasuadxyg

sanuaaaz pue 1oddns arjqnd 1ejo .

SONUIAJI [B1O],

S)asse JO JaJsuel} Wioy uren)
3uip[ing Jo sjes uo uren

BYyo
awooul [e1USy
awosul 3OIAIIS YO

19U ‘s39) 291AISS ureI3o1

1SANUBAYY

poddns s1qnd [e10],

uoddns snignd 10410

3urpuny [v00] pue 2jeIg
HHd - saysdurey maN jo 91e)g

[eIopa,]
:1oddns onqng

'S3AUSASI pue poddns STqig



-6l - uoday sJ03pny juspuadapu] 235

089°6LE€T $§ - $ 089°GLET § LSL'STI  $ 1v6'Syl  $ I86€0ICT $ 1294 Jo pud ‘sjasse 10N
905$°887°C - 905°887°C 919801 176°St1 676°€€0°C Teak Jo Buruui3aq ‘sjasse JoN
pLI'LY - PLI'LY 1vILl - €€0°0L s1osse Jou ut d3uey)
9S1°6Z9°11 (gc6°sD) 680°1#9°11 9a6°tl £€6°S1 01Z°119°11 sosuadxa [e10],
$TT'688 - STT'688 - - $TT'688 Sasuadxa aanensIuIuIpy
1g6°seL0l  (£€6°S1) P98 ISL'Ol  9v6'El £€6°S1 $86°17L01 sasuadxa weiSoud e10],
6£9°SES (gg6°s1) TLS'1SS A £€6°S1 £69°1CS sao1AI0s wigs3oxd papuny HEg-uoN
£€8°8€€°( - £€8°8€€°l - - £€8°8¢¢°1 wdneding pazijedadg-uoN
800°60Y - 800°607 - - 800°60F JUSUINRAI |, ANUNUILO)) JAILIISSY
LEGVL'] - L8EGYL L - - L8EGYL L Buia1 Juspuadapuy
¥76799 - ¥76'799 - - ¥76'799 ale]) Moy
8ELBSY'] - 8ELBSH'I - - 8EL'BSY'I IVIAIRS-HMA
168°828 - 158°8¢C8 - - 158°S78 28por aver] Iaarag
£TL°S8T - €TL'S8T - - €TL'S8C [eUOnIBO0 A
£69°L8C - €69°L8C - - £69°L8C Si3p|d
Se1°T8I‘e - SE1‘T8I‘E - - Se1°z8I‘e uaIp[yo
sweiSoxd papuny Hag
Sasusdxy
0EETIL LI (€g6°s1) €9T°8TL 11 L80°1E £€6°S1 YT 18911 sanuaAa1 pue poddns orqnd felo],
6£9°CEV°01 (€g6°s1) TLS‘6tv0l - £€6°S1 6€9°€Er 01 SONUIAI [E10],
ovI°6l (€ evi‘el - 3 ov1°6l _Qo
v6L€8 (og6°s1) vTL66 - 0€6'S1 6L €8 swodul [Bjudy
€SL°69¢ - €SL°69€ - - €SLS9¢ BWOdUL 3OIAIIS ISYIO
7561966 - 7S6'v96°6 - - 7561966 10U ‘539 991A10s WRIS01 ]
1SANUAAYY
169°8LZ°1 - 169°8LT°1 L80O°1€ - v09°'LYT 1 woddns arjqnd @10,
TCE8E - TTE8E L80°I€ - SET'L uoddns o1jqnd soy30
00v'LY - 00v'LY - - 00v'LY Fuipuny [o0[ pue s1eIg
$S6°CTT - §S6°TCT - - $$6°CCT HEd - anysdwey moN Jo drels
vio‘oLe $ - $ vio‘oLe $ - $ - $ PI00L6 $ [e1opay

:uoddns o1qug
:S9NUSAJI pue Moddns J1jgqnd

Uowwﬂu:OmCOU m:OmuwcmEm 13 jelo L Coma&ﬁﬁﬂo A JuuwImMopuy aﬂongwﬁmg
WD NOOY 1SOM  JIT 10J I9IUD)

£10T ‘0€ sunf papuy Jes X dy1 10,
SONIANOY JO Judwale)§ Suneprjosuo))
SALVITIAAY ANV INFIWADVNVIN AT 304 ddLNID WD v/d/d
HITHSdWVH MEAN NAFHLNOS YO YHLNAD HLTVAH TVINGW dHL



-0Z- yoday sJopny juspuadopuy 205

6TTYLI‘T $ (F91) § (€£8791°01)$ (LT09SLD)  § O00P'SSIEl $ €68°L06 & el
(Fr9°1LE) 91) - - - (08¥°1LE) 2oUBMO[[Y
9€L°LLT - (592°82¢) (9€L°1927) 0€S°SEL L0TTEL QIBJIPIN
80°C09 - (s6€°L50°L)  (00S°TLYD) 7€€°9.8°8 LY9‘SSY presips]y
S9t 1€l - (zoL'L6s')  (068°sTh) ¥S6°€00°C €91°1S1 saruedwod ddueinsuj
88S‘PES $ - $ (st'6L1°’1) $ (106°S6€) $ +85°695°1 § 9sc0rS  $ SLEl o)
Jes g duemo[[y  S1d1d3ay yse) UDATD) $33] SSOID) Jed X
Jo puy ui a3uey) SJUNOISI(Y L_YIO Jo Sutuuideg
O[qRAIINY PUB S20UBMO[|Y 3|qQBAISOY
SIUNOAIY jenioesuo) SIUNOIDY

¥10T ‘0¢ dunf papuy Je3 A Ay 104
J[QBAIDD9Y SIUNOIIY JO SISA[euyY
SALVITIAAVY ANV LNIFWADVNVIA AT 04 dAINID WD v/a/d
FIYIHSdWVH MIN NIFHLNOS MO4d YdINID HLTVAH TVINIW dHL



uoday s onpny juspuadopu] 995

- ﬁNl
699°0S¥ § 978°¢ $ £69'607 § (9s8°091) $ (zLevey) $ (191LE) § 6959 § (Ti6's8) § vrgLer  $ (s80v1)  $ (000°6¢) 8.8°607 $ 8Sr86E §
868°€L1°T1 - 868°€EETI  $S6°079 068 PLY'1 16L°00§ $80°506°1 LS9TLL 9y 689°1 £59°¢56 15565 86L°96T £L0¥99°¢
L9SY8STI 98¢ 16SEVETL 660°09% 816°6¥0°1 0£9°€9Y £55°0L6°] SPL 989 0T€°L861 896°6£6 156°91¢ 9£9°90§ 1£5°790°
6TL8TTIT  9T8°C £SL°L86°0F  ¥91°TEY £TT'LT0°L SS8°LLE 7857871 6LYSES LT LY6'1 91L°859 620712 9L9°90¢ 798°500%
0SI°LET v00°8% ov1°681 Sev'l £56°ST €871 L8E°LT €L9°11 L8ELT 68761 1€T°S SLE'S £€6°LS
897°91 9Z8°¢ (444l L8 1L8'et (892) Siv'e €L (LLTY) syl - $1 (179°7)
pLE 18 - pLE 18 - €68 - - ££8 £€8 786°LL - - ££8
CI2 - #9549t L19°6S 6v9'TH - - £T6 8T - - - €8L°L T6SEL
£LE6THOI - £LE6TH 01 09Y°9LE 018696 £T1°8LE LOV6LT T 059°6¥C 119'8%6°[ 985°08¢ 620v1¢ 6L8°861 850'VE6°E
8£8°55€°1 - 8€8°GSE] SE6°LT $69°TT SLL'S8 1£6°L89 99T IS £51°0% 758°087 ST - 699°96
9T1€ - 9T 1€ 68L - - - - - 005°8T - - €L671
S6T'8Y - 567'8Y 009°t1 L9T°E - - - - - - - 8TH 0E
v$6°7TT - v$6°7TT - - 666°6L - S81°1¥1 - - - - 0LL'T
LTEESO'L & - § LTEESO'L § 9pSTL § 8TYEl $§ 9LLS $ 1L6489 § 18001 § €SI0Ov $ TSETST § TIST $ - $ 86¥TT  $
Uy JANEns] SAJTAIRG Ha¢-uoN jusneding JUSUIEII] JurAT Eie} ERIEVETY 33po1o¥e]  [BUONEIOA BEVE| [TEN )
B0, -uupy weigold »YIO pazijedadg  Ajunwwo)  juspuadapuy ANdY -NINA 19ABE
ol -uou QAIUASS Y

10T ‘0€ dunf papug 1eax Ay 104
sasuadxy pue sanuaady weidold Jo aNpPayos
LNFWNIDVNVIA 41T 404 ¥ALNID WD v/a/d
FAHSIAVH MAN NAIFHILNO0S 404 431INTD HLTVEH TV.INIW dHL

BN
sasuadxa weiod B0
sanuaaal pue poddns o1qnd [e10

SANUAAAL {10 |,
$19SS® JO 19JSUBI] WOl Ulen)
B_YPO
2UI0OUT [BJUSY
SUWODLT ITALIS 194)(0)
13U $39) A91AJ3s weloig
1$9NUAAY

uoddns arqnd ejo .
uoddns stqnd 194300
Surpuny [eo0| pue IS
Hegg - anysdurep] man jo deig
[e19pa,]
“ywoddns a1qng
"S3MUSAST pue Hoddns J1[qn]




- NNI
868°€CEITIS - § 868°CEI'TIS SS6079 § 068°vLPT $ 16£°00S § ¥80°S06°1 § LS9TLL § 9PP689°1 $§ £59°ES6  § ISSSST § 86L96T § ELOPIYE §
- (ZT90'100°1)  T90°100°Y 01T1s £89°1¢1 LI SLI'LS] 9pL°€9 r8C°6E1 6L9°8L £80°1¢C L8V VT 867°20¢
868°CE1°TL  T90°100°L 9E8°TEI'Ll  SPL69S LOTESE PLY 65T 606°LYLL 116°80L 790°055°1 PLE'PLY 89V €T gLt SLLY9E'E
756°681 SLS'I LLOP8I] LE 6977 $66 81 S60°€S €IEL 6L°6 169°6 SE9°8 89 L9S'EL
LY0'S91 S0Z'L LS l6v6L 010 20T°1 8€6°C 69T 998°S vTSTS 433 116 6L7'8
SYTTEY I8 vy TEPL8E SSETL 680°TH 06L°81 899°8v £92°81 0EY'S¥ §SE°9¢ S6£°Tl 109°8 986'v¥!
6LI'SE 1LL1T 80P°€1 TLEL y21°T iz4all L8T1 810 97T 8% L6 182 8LT'E
L90LIT 201'vg $96'T81 v91°6 LI9'%T 1£5'9 6¥S°12 9Eb bl £9€°C 785°TT £ee'e 086°C 00¥'€S
8Py E6L 118°sT LES'LYL 19%'52 009 €LY 0 16¥ U6EL 160°LE 78¢°¢8 08S 708°6 PTO°LS
6L0°79 181°L $68°9S 981°C1 ope's ISy 0650 8£S°1 9LY'y 80¢°C 669 L8 SEV'L
91589 4 Lre9 08¥ L99'8 89L°¢ LY1°6 668°¢ Lrl's (TAKS LyL'l S6L 6v¢61
697°821 6vE°91 0Z6'111 6v8 SSE'sl L9 $61°91 2069 70791 ¥91°6 $60°€ 8L1°E 60€°vE
£91°8L 99¢°9 L60'TL 61S 90t°6 680°F 926°6 1€y 869°11 98¢°L 968°1 816°1 866°0C
L81°9T 8L6'T 607°¢T s ope'e 11 911 Lyl'g vi6'T 569 S 20¢ 65011
€87 Iyt Wo'1Z g1 9¢€°T 910°1 876'C 150°1 826°C €8y Iy 8¢ SIT'S
TIS€TT eEYLl 6L0°90C $96°1 vLT8T £62°C1 6£8°6C 8ILTI 6£8°67 $L8°91 00L'S 958°S 0Z1°¢9
867°9¢ 06Z°¢1 800°€Z 128°C 1T o'y 600°S PLO' 0£S°1 LSL'1 U9 167 €08
088°C! 65¢°1 128711 68¢ LOV'T L8Y 6Pl Lpi'i 01%1 178 082 %4 LOO'E
8/8°16 L8O 16L°LY S9¢ §55°9 £68°C 1269 056°C 1269 £l6'e 1Z€°t LSEL SE9p1
LYI°LSS PLS 9 €LS01S 9££°ST £€L°69 LS0°0T £0£°8S STI'8E S98°7L 986" v¢ 08¥°01 S9LEL £2€°L91
910°86€°1 889'86 87€°66T 1 £99°¢y 168°5¢€1 8€6°69 867°891 L8L'E9 £8L°€HT 1L1°601 79¢'s¢ LLYTE 868°10%
TET6EL § S6EPP9  § LESV669 § 06CKSE  § €869v6  § 190987  § 1I1T66L $§ 1LSOIS  § I9STITOT $ LTEELY  § 6vELYl S veTL8l § 060°89T°T §
ASus3Y FATELST EEINEIN HOgUoN  JWneding  J9umesI] SUTAT] 1) ENINEN J3po[oNe]  [EUONESOA S12pT T3IpYD
L[ -ulupy weido1d 12410 pazijerdadg  Awunwwo)  juapuadapu ANV -ONIN JaAedQ
[e10L -uou QAIUISSY

10T "0 dunf papug Jea X 2y} 104
sasuadxg weidoid jo aNpayos

INAWIDVYNVIN F4I'T JO4 YFLNID WD v/

AYIHSAWVH MIN NYFHLNOS Y04 Y9INID HLTVIH TVINGW JHL

uoday sJoupny juspuadapuj s0g

sasuadxa weidoid |e10],
UONEOO[E ANRAISIUIWPY

[oARI]
sarjddns weiSoiy
529 [euoissajold 10410
sasuadxa 10410
sasuadxa 201130
sasuadxa Aouednao
sanp diysiaquiapy
$395 eday
asuadxa 3sa1ojuf
JoueInsuj
eiua1 uawdinby
2oueuajurewt udawdinby
uonjeziuowe/uoneIoaIdag
S3UnaoW pue SUOTIUAAUOD ‘SAOUIIRJUO))
EOINETN Y
$33] 11pne/SUnUN0Y
saxe] |[0JAed
sjjauaq s240idwiy
sadem pue sale[eg
‘SIS0 [AUUOSId]



Policy No. CS100.00

CILM fle;;z;er for Life | -

.....

ement

~ s management.

TITLE: Client Rights
EFFECTIVE DATE: June 1899
April 2003
January 2006
Revised Feb 2008
APPROVED BY: Senlor Management Team Date 6-28-2010
Chief Executive Officer Date 6-28-2010
APPLIES TO: All programs and departments

CONTACT PERSON: V.P. of Quality & Compliance

POLICY:

1.
2.

10.

All services rendered by Center for Life Management (CLM) will be rendered on a non-
discriminatory basis as requited by federal and state laws.

All services will be rendered in 2 manner that is respectful of each person’s age, gender, social
supports, cultural orientation, psychological characteristics, sexual orientation, physical situation,
and spirttual beliefs.

CLM shall ensure that all clients will be invoived in all aspects of their treatment.

No applicant for service or client receiving service will be denied any right as set forth and
protected by the New Hampshire Bureau of Behavioral Health in He-M 308. All clients of CLM
shall be covered by this policy.

CLM will have an estabiished mechanism for the notification of client rights and HIPAA privacy
practices to ali applicants for service.

CLM will have an established mechanism for the investigation and resolution of complaints
regarding client rights. Investigations are part of CLM’s Quality Improvement Program and, as
such, are afforded certain protections from discovery.

CLM will have an established mechanism for the documentation of complaints regarding client
rights.

All employees of CLM will be trained annually on client rights and will review CLM's Code of
Ethics annually.

Employees of CLM ehall make a complaint to the CLM Client Rights investigator on behalf of an
individual whenever they have reason to believe that a client rights violation has occurred.
Complaints determined by the Client Rights Investigator customer service in nature shall be
referred fo the appropriate department/program manager for resolution.

PROCEDURE

1.

At Intake, and annually thereafter, in clearly understandable language, ali applicants for service
will be informed, orally and in writing of their rights as defined by He-M 309 and of the complaint
process.

At Intake, all clients will receive a copy of CLM’s Notice of Privacy Practices.

All applicants for services shall be informed of their right to an evaluation and access to

treatment.
Notification of client rights will be documented in the client record.
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8.

9.

10.
1.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.

18.

Policy No. CS100.00
Reviewed: 6-2010

An outline of client rights and HIPAA privacy practices will be conspicuously posted at each
service delivery site.

Each program secretary, who will make them available to any client who asks to see an d/for read
the entirety of their client rights, will keep complete copies of He-M 309 and 202.

CLM will have at all times, a designated Clients Rights Investigator and a Privacy Officer.
Designation or changes in designation of the Client Rights Investigatar shall be reported to the
Office of Client Legal Services at the Bureau of Behavioral Health.

The Client Rights Investigator will investigate each complaint In an objective manner. The
resolution process and notification process.outlined in He-M 202 will be followed.

At the option of the individual or guardian and, except in cases of abuse, neglect, or exploitation,
concerns may be addressed informally as defined in He-M 303, '

There will be no limit to the number of complaints by any complainant.

Complaints will be resolved within fifteen working days after receipt of the complaint, except for
comptlaints requiring emergency actions, which shall require a decision no later than four working
days after receipt of the complaint.

A client, an applicant for service, an employee of a program or family members of clients may
make complaints. No complaint shall fall fo be investigated due to the source of the compliant.
Instances of abuse, neglect or exploitation shall also be reported to the Division of Eiderly and
Ault Services (DEAS) or Division for Children, Youth and Famifies (DCYF), as appropriate.

An employee making a compliant on behalf of a client in good faith shall not be subject to formal
or informai disciplinary actions, harassment or any form of retribution.

Employees are required to fully cooperate in any compliant investigation.

Clients will be informed of the appeals process for all complaints investigated.

The HIPAA Privacy Officer will handle all federal HIPAA Privacy issues as defined by those
regulations.

All complaints summaries will be reviewed brought CLM's quality improvement process and
incorporated into the Quality Improvement Pian.
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Policy No. C$100.00
Reviewed: 6-2010

CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT
CLIENT RIGHTS INVESTIGATION TRACKING FORM

Date of Complaint:

Consumer Name: Age: Sex:

Consumer Phone:

Consumer’s Program:

Consumer’s Treatment Provider(s):

Complainant Name: Phone:

Relationship to Consumer:

Complaint/incident:

Complaint/incident Reported to:
DCYF DEAS Police Guardian

Other (specify):
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Policy No. C§100.00
Reviewed: 6-2010
CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT
CLIENT RIGHTS INVESTIGATION REPORT

Initiai Complaint:

Client Rights Alleged to Have Been Violated:

Interviews:

Discovery:

Finding:

Recommendations:

Actions Taken by Investigator:

Client Rights Investigator Date
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As a cliemt of Center for Life Management, you have rights that will be respected and maintained. ‘Your most
important right Is the right to know what your rights are and the right to complain when you believe that your rights
have been violated. No client shall be deprived of any legal right to which all citizens are entitled solely by reason of
their admiasion to the mental health services system. Some of these rights are outlined below. If you would like a

complet

e copy of the State reguiation that g

overns these rights, please ask a staff member for a copy of He-M 300

Rights of Perso entt aith Services in
PERSONAL RIGHTS
s to not be discriminated agalnst to freedom from restraint and seclusion except for
+ to be treated with dignity and respect personal eafety
o 1o be free from abuss, neglect, and exploitation 1o recelve adequate written notice prior to suspension or
« fo confidentiality: some exceptions are outlined termination of treatment with explanations as to the

below
1o complain about a violation of rights

SOME EXCEPTIONS TO CONFIDENTIALITY

to secure payment

when reporting abuse, neglect or exploitation of
disabled adults or of children to the Divislon of
Behavioral Heatth

in cases of an Involuntary Emergency Admission
or Guardianship proceedings

when you are a danger to yourself or others

to family members or other person who lives

reason, and for the right to appeasl the action
if you are determined eligible io receive state funded
services, to have your clinician explain:

o the purpose of the Individual Service Planning
(ISP) treatment planning process including
gloals, objectives, timelines, reviews, and crisls

ans

o that you have the power to choose either of the
foliowing methods by which my ISP is
developed

» through a formal client centered
conference that is a meeting et a
mutually convenient time and place

with you or provides direct care to you (under with the psychiatrist and other
certain circumstances) involved persons approved by me,
such as family members, CLM staff,
TREATMENT RIGHTS representatives of other agencies
» {o adequate and humane treatment providing services to me such as

to make decisions about your services

to treatment based on generally accepted
clinical and professional standards

to @ mutually agreed upon treatment plan

to services in the least restrictive setting

to be informed of all significant risks, benefits,

vocational rehabilitation, friends, an
attomey, legal representative, a peer
advacate and/or others with relevant
knowledge or expertise

. = through a less formal method that
shall include one or more one-on-one

side affects, and aliemative treatment and or small group meetings with the
services ‘psyd\htnst andlo';‘ others by phone,
. n person and/or through other
s to be fully informed of your diagnosis and b ne.

prognosis

{o seek changes in services or freatment

to refuse medication and treatment {except in
involuntary Emergency Admissions)

to consultation and second opinions

to have someone with you at treatment
meetings where informed decision-meking is
required

to have ten days to make a decislon afler receiving the
wﬁtt}gnpexplanaﬁon regarding he methods to develop
the

to consult with family, friends, therapists, edvocates and
cothers before making the decision regarding the method
to develop my ISP

These treatment rights do not require CLM to provide services or administer treatment that it considess unreasonable,
unnecessary and/or against the dlinical judgment of s professional staffl. To assure a safe environment for all
persons | understand that no firearms or other weapons are allowed on CLM premises except by law enforcement
personnel. If you feel that your rights have been violated, we urge you to contact us at any of the CLM sites or
offices. You may do so by phone or In writing. Address your concems to Client Rights In tor at
Center for Life Management, 10 Tsienneto Road, or call 603-434-1577.

Client Signature Date Guardian or DPOA Date
WHITE COPY TO CLIENT AND YELLOW COPY FOR RECORD
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Elizabeth Roth
Chairperson

Ron Lague
Vice President

Judi Ryan

Secretary

Philip Plante

Jeffrey Rind, MD
Gail Corcoran
Vic Topo

President & CEO

Vernon Thomas

Susan Davis

Laura Nelson
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July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2015

ot PR AN R



July 1, 2014 - June 30, 2017

2L

Kurt Simione

Roger Konstant




VICTOR TOPO

Home;
Mobile:

President/Chief Executive Officer

Successful 28-year career as clinician, manager and CEO in community mental health organizations located
in Ohio and New Hampshire. Proven ability to lead board and staff with a persistent focus on mission and
achieving results. Talent for exploring new and innovative approaches to delivering traditional and non-
traditional behavioral health care. Possess wide range of knowledge and experience with all service
populations, especially vulnerable persons at high risk. Strengths include:

e Operations e Board Collaboration
e Reorganization and Reinvention e Joint ventures and strategic partnerships
e Team building and leadership e Strong relationship with funders
e Strategic planning e Community building
Professional Experience
Center for Life Management — Derry, NH ‘ 1999 — Present

President/Chief Executive Officer
Recruited to manage 501(c) 3 comprehensive community mental health center and its title holding
501(c) 2 corporation, entitled West Rock Endowment Association. Began with revenues of 6.5
million and increased to 9 million. Restructured senior management increasing direct reports from

three to six.

Key results:

Established closer connection with surrounding community utilizing aggressive public
relations strategy while also rebranding CLM in 2004.

Guided Board of Directors towards more accountability including higher expectation
from management and individual board members.

Initiated and implemented Corporate Compliance Program, including selection of
corporate compliance officer

Increased year after year number of persons served starting with 3,400 to nearly 6,000.
Created and implemented strategy to integrate mental health care with physician
healthcare. Integrated behavioral health services into 2 Primary Care/Pediatric
Practices and one Specialty (GYN) Practice in Southern New Hampshire.
Consolidated outpatient offices toward design and construction of new state of the art
26,000 square foot facility. Received national awards for design and use of new
facility.

Provided leadership and vision to oversee the development of a Electronic Health
Record (EHR) called webAISCE. Software now includes e-prescribing and has begun
acquiring Meaningful Use dollars.

Adopted Transcranial Magnetic Stimulation (TMS) as newest neurotech treatment for
Major Depressive Disorder. First free standing community mental health center in the
U.S. to offer it.

Pathways, Inc. — Mentor, OH 1988 - 1999
Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director
Started with managing a small single purpose case management agency with revenues of $486,000
and over 11 years grew revenues to 4 million by expanding services to chronically mentally ill
consumers. Created senior management team and strengthened Board of Directors utilizing shared
vision approach.



VICTOR TOPO

-Page 2-
Key results:

° In collaboration with mental health board designed one of Ohio’s first 24 hour 7 days
a week in-home crisis stabilization program called C.B.S. (Community Based
Stabilization).

° Assumed leadership role in transitioning 32 long-term patients back to our
community.

° Positioned organization every year to competitively bid on ever/service provided and
be awarded the service contract. Expanded wide range of services that include
psychiatry, counseling, emergency services and housing.

° Created county’s only Atypical Neuroleptic Medication Program (e.g. Clozaril).

° Pathways’ first long range strategic plan in 1992.

° Increased Medicaid revenue from $38,000 in 1989 to $431,210 in 1997.

Community Counseling Center — Ashtabula, OH 1983-1988
Case Management Supervisor/Case Manager
Provided direct services and supervision for services to severely mentally disabled persons in the
community. Partnered with local private hospital as well as state hospital.

Key results:
° Transitioned consumers back into supervised and independent living.
° Recruited, trained and managed staff of five case managers.
° Designed and implemented agency’s first case management program.

EDUCATION

Master of Social Work (MSW)
West Virginia University, Morgantown, WV

Bachelor of Arts (BA)
Siena College, Londonville, NY

Associate of Applied Science (AAS)
Fulton-Montgomery Community College, Johnstown, NY

BOARD/LEADERSHIP POSITIONS

Heritage United Way — Board of Directors

Mental Health Commission — Co-Chair
Consumers and Families Work Group

Statewide Evidenced Based Practice Committee — Co-Chair
Greater Salem Chamber of Commerce — Board of Directors
Greater Derry/Londonderry Chamber of Commerce — Board of Directors

Greater Derry/Salem Regional Transportation Council (RTC) -
Chairman, Board of Directors, Derry, NH

Greater Salem Leadership Program — Graduate, Class of 2001



Michael J. Bergeron
0B
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PROFESSIONAL PROFILE:

o Thirty-five plus years of extensive clinical background and skills combined with proven
administrative and financial management experience. Reputation for high integrity,
loyalty, dependability, hard work, dedication, attention to detail, and goal achievement.
Proven history of successful program development.

EXPERIENCE:
CLM Center for Life Management, Salem, NH 9/99--Present
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
¢ Executive/administrative responsibility for Fmance Accounting, Accounts Recejvable,
Accounts Payable, and Payroll. Primary responsibilities for fiscal management and
reporting and regulatory compliance, budget development, monitoring, and management,
state & vendor contracting, employee benefits negotiations, board reporting, and lender
relations.
CLM Center for Life Management, Salem, NH 11/87--9/99
Director, Case Management Services
» Complete administrative, operational, and supervisory responsibility for the initial
development and ongoing management of discrete case management services within the
context of a multi-disciplinary treatment team model of community support programs.
Led the expansion of this service to all populations, and guided transformation from a
fully funded to a revenue generating service with $1.4 million of annual billing and
significant budget surpluses. Assisted with the design and development of customized
network database system for case management and clinical desk top applications.
Responsible for State audits resulting in ninety-five plus percent contract compliancy
ratings. Member of management council, budget committee, strategic planning group,
mission statement work group, communication committee, TBS TQM initiative, and
invited by the Board to the CEO search committee.
Hampstead Hospital,, Hampstead, NH 10/76--10/87
Senior Psychiatric Counselor
¢ Provided individual, group, and family counseling as well as milieu management services
and staff training. Instrumental in the expansion of the counseling role and
responsibility. Appointed senior counselor by the Medical Director in recognition of this
initiative and overall performance.

Prudential Insurance Company, Lawrence, MA 9/75—10/76
Special Agent
e Sales and marketing of complete insurance portfolio including life, health, property-
casualty, and retirement.
Raytheon Company, Andover, MA 5/73—3/75

Government Property Coordinator
¢ Management of utilization and disposition of government property, facilities, tooling, and
test equipment in accordance with contract stipulations.

Center For Life Management 54



Holy Family Hospital, Methuen, MA 6/70—6/72
Psychiatric Counselor
¢ Provided individual, group, and family counseling. Assisted with other indicated medical
procedures such as electroconvulsive therapy, and participated in milieu management and

activities.
EDUCATION:

» New Hampshire College, Graduate School of Business, Manchester, NH
M.B.A. Degree 1987

¢ Fitchburg State College, Graduate School of Guidance and Counseling, Fitchburg, MA
18 Graduate Hours in Counseling 1973

¢ Nathaniel Hawthorne College, Antrim, NH
B.A. Degree 1971

LICENSES AND PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS:
e Licensed Certified Social Worker, Massachusetts License #3028-2-051-181
* Member in Good Standing National Association of Social Workers

Center For Life Management 55



LISA K. MADDEN. MSW. T1.ICSW

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Vice President and Chief Operating Officer, 6/05 — present
Center for Life Management, Derry, NH

Responsible for the overseeing the efficient operations of outpatient clinical systems of care in
accordance with all federal and state requirements.

Established and maintain an accountability process which establishes a high
standard of care and measures the provision of services against the established
standards.

Established and maintain clinical service goals and incentive pay for performance
system within a financially self-sustaining model of care.

Provide direct supervision of operations and facilities. Oversee the selection,
orientation, training, counsel, discipline and direction of all program staff.
Responsible for monitoring clinical and administrative costs and revenue
generation as well as the submission of the annual program budgets to the
President and CEO.

Collaborate with the Vice President of Quality and Compliance to determine the
training needs for clinical and clinical administrative staff.

Assist the President and CEO in developing short and long range strategic
plans including program expansions, business development, facilities and
capital usage and/or improvements, etc.

Responsible for the implementation and expansion in of new or existing
programs in response to community needs.

Responsible for the establishment and maintenance of an integrated care model
which allows for seamless access to services within the agency and coordination
of services with area healthcare providers, hospitals and primary care physicians.
Supervise the Director of Integrated Care and assist with the implementation of the
model.

Assisted CLM in the process of consolidating three sites into one new state of the
art facility in July 2007.

Consultant, 6/04 — 6/05
Lisa K. Madden, LICSW, LLC

Independent contractor providing consultation services to a community counseling center and a

specialized foster care organization.

Interim Clinic Director, 8/04 — 5/05
Wayside Youth and Family Support, Framingham, MA

Responsible for the turnaround management of a large community counseling center in

Framingham. Accomplishments include:
e Reorganized clinical team, supervisory structure and support staff functions
¢ Implemented necessary performance improvement plans
e Hired staff with significantly increased productivity expectations



* Assisted in the implementation of a new Performance Management and Billing
System
e Worked diligently to foster a positive work environment through extensive verbal
and written communication; staff involvement in decisions when appropriate;
providing direct feedback when necessary; and by providing support. The goal
was to foster a positive and cooperative “culture” in the clinic.
¢ Provided senior management with budget reforecast for FY 05 and will assist
with the development of program budget for FY *06.
Clinical Supervisor, 7/04 — 6/05
The Mentor Network, Lawrence MA
¢ Provide clinical supervision to MSW’s seeking independent licensure.
¢ Provide training and consultation to the staff on such topics as diagnostic
evaluations, treatment plans and case presentations.
e Provide group support and trauma debriefing after a critical incident.

Northeast Regional Clinic Director, The Family Counseling Center, 12/99 — 9/03

The Massachusetts Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Children (MSPCC), Lawrence, MA

Responsible for turn around management of the clinics in the Northeast Region of MSPCC,

specifically the cities of Lawrence, Lynn and Lowell. The clinics had been struggling with

increased turnover of staff, reduced revenue, poor management of contracts, as well as significant
problems in the medical records department. Responsibilities included budget development,
implementation and accountability. Accomplishments include:

e Grew clinical team from 15 to 32 clinicians in three years.

Developed Multi-Cultural Treatment Team.

Increased annual third party revenue by 70%.

Increased annual contract revenue by 65%.

Contracts with the Department of Social Services; the Department of Mental Health in

conjunction with the Professional Parent Advocacy League; the Department of Education

and the Community Partnerships for Children and HeadStart.

¢ Organized a successful site visit and program review for re-licensure from the
Department of Public Health (DPH).

¢ Successful site visit by the Council on Accreditation (COA).

e Reorganized Medical Records to meet DPH and COA standards; reorganize claims
support resulting in increased revenue received for services rendered and significantly
reduced write-offs.

e Participated on the HIPAA Task force—assisted in the development and implementation
of the federally mandated Health Information Portability and Accountability Act policies
and procedures for MSPCC.

Clinic Director, The Family Counseling Center, 9/95-12/99
MSPCC, Hyannis, MA
Responsible for the turn around management of a regional clinic serving children and families on
Cape Cod. The clinic had recently experienced over 70% turnover, significant reduction in
revenue, and a series of very negative stories in the local media because of the agency’s response
to the implementation of managed care. Responsible for marketing and public relations,
redevelopment of a high quality clinical treatment team, increasing revenue and program
development. Accomplishments include:

e Grew clinical team from 12 to 37 in three years.

o Streamlined intake procedures to increase access to services and reduce wait times.

¢ Increased annual third party revenue by 80%.



¢ Developed consultative relationships with two of Cape Cod’s most well respected
children’s services providers.

e Developed first private/public partnership between MSPCC and a private practice to
increase the availability of specialty clinical services.

¢ Developed internship program for Master’s level clinician candidates.

Employee Assistance Professional, Clinical Social Worker, 9/93-7/95
North Essex Community Mental Health Center, (NECMHC, Inc.), Newburyport/Haverhill, MA

Clinical Social Worker — Intern, 5/93-9/93
NECMHC, Inc., Newburyport/Haverhill, MA

Clinical Social Worker — Intern, 9/92-4/93
Worcester Children’s Friend Society, Worcester, MA

EAP Case Management Supervisor, 4/90-4/93
The Jernberg Corporation, Worcester, MA

EAP Case Manager, 2/89-4/90
The Jernberg Corporation, Worcester, MA

Clinical Counselor I & 11
The Carol Schmidt Diagnostic Center and Emergency Shelter, YOU, Inc., Worcester, MA, 10/85-2/89

EDUCATION

University of Connecticut, School of Social Work, West Hartford, CT
Masters in Social Work, Casework/Administration, August 1993

Clark University, Worcester, MA
Bachelor of Arts, Government/Human Services, May 1985

PROFESSIONAL LICENSE

Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker, MA # 1026094

References available upon request.



Heather M. Crowell, LCMHC, MLADC

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

Center for Life Management, Derry, NH

Lead Clinician for Substance Use Disorders, August 2007-Present

Provided individual psychotherapy services to adult outpatient clients as well as clients in the
Community Support Program. Other program responsibilities include: weekly psychotherapy group
focused on co-occurring disorders, training and supervision to LADC’s in the agency in regards to
WITS computer system, mentoring to clinicians in regards to substance abuse and co-occurring
disorders, training and mentoring to clinicians around co-occurring issues, training and mentoring
of new clinicians around paperwork within the agency, supervision to candidates for licensure in
the State of New Hampshire for the Licensed Clinical Mental Health Counselor license, and
assessment of clients for eligibility for Community Support Program.

Three Rivers School, Pembroke NH

Interim School Counselor, 2007 '

School Counselor for approximately 400 students in grades 5-8. Provided individual and group
counseling to students. Provided classroom guidance lessons to 5" and 6™ grade in personal

development.

East Rochester School, Rochester, NH

School Counselor, 2004 - 2006

School Counselor for approximately 250 students in grades K-5. Provided both individual and
group counseling to students. Implemented a classroom guidance program that included topics
such as: friendships, bullying, anger management, and diversity. Other responsibilities include 504
management, co-facilitator of standardized computer testing for students in grades 2-5, and
facilitator of Child Study Team.

EDUCATION

Rivier College, Nashua, NH

Certificate of Advanced Graduate Studies
Mental Health Counseling, 2008

GPA: 3.89

Certificate, School Counseling, 2003
GPA: 4.0, Major GPA: 4.0

Plymouth State College, Plymouth, NH
M.Ed., Counselor Education, 2002
GPA: 3.58, Member of Phi Delta Kappa

Saint Joseph's College, Standish, Maine



B.A., Sociology, Minor: Psychology, 1999

PROFESSIONAL LICENSES
¢ New Hampshire Board of Mental Health Practice
o Licensed Clinical Mental Health Counselor 2010- Present

¢ New Hampshire Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services
o Master's Level Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor 2011-Present

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS

¢ NAADC- The Association of Addiction Professionals
e NHADACA- NH Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association



Barry C. Quimby
BARRY C. QUIMBY

Summary: Over 18 years experience in commpunity mental health and substance abuse treatment

Vast experience in chmnadvomcymmmmmbmeﬁu/gamfnlmploymmt
Knowledge of state/federal regulations and policies goveming grant operations
Knowledge of HUD housing/PATH ontreach and program operations

Experience:

Center for Life Mansgement- Derry, New Hampshire Jime 2000-Presers

®

Program Maunsger for Housing Development: Responsible for overseeing ell HUD funding
including the Shelter Plus Care housing assistance program, Foster relations with Jocal landlords,
Awrange for apartment inspections to meet HUD Quality Standards, Process and complete necessary
file documentation, Advocate for clients within the program to obtain affordable housing, Serve as
liaison to the Jocal Housging Authority. Responsible for HMIS data entry, Annual renewals, APR
submission, and Quarterly reports for all HUD contracts including Beaver Lake Lodge (A HUD
funded residential program). Co-Chair to the New Hampshire Balance of State Contimunm of Care
(BOSCOC) (Nominated November 2007) Active perticipant of NH-BMIS Advisory Committee and
NH HMIS Data Quality Cornmittee. Successful recipient of a socond Shelter Plus Care Good
Samaritan grant involving three agencies participating in the NH BOSCOC in 2009. Successful
recipient of NHH Transitional Housing funds for a Permanent Housing Program 2010,

PATH Homeless Outreach Supervisor; Successtul recipient of PATH funding to CLM.
Responsible for overseeing sll aspects of program fimding for outreach to homeless individuals in
Western Rockingham County. Provide outreach to identify homeless individuals suffering from
mental iliness and homelessness, link to commnunity services for which said individuals are eligible and
assist individuals engaged in obtaining mainstream benefits, housing, legal advocacy, and commmmity
Ments) Health / Substance Abuse services. Assisted in the development of Bi-State Technical
Assistance graut from SAMHSA to provide training for PATH providers on legal issues, advocacy,

program improvemend, and interstate collabaration to improve services provided to homeless
mdwidualamNemexpahucdeexmom. Successfully initiated CLM as a pilot program in New
Hampshire for PATH data entry into NH-HMIS.

Case Mansger: Responsible for the direct service planming as part of a multidisciplinary community
support teem. Provide Case Mansgement and Functional Support Services to adult clients with mental
illness. Consult with medical / clinical staff; Assist clents with identifying optians for employment
and assist with job placement and maintaining employment, Refer clients to conmunity resources;
Provide representative payee sesvices; Promote independent functioning in the community to clients
served; Provide staff training and orientation. Served as Dialectical Behavioral Therapy (DBT) skills
group Jeader. Trained in DBT Therapy and active member of DBT consultation team. Serve on
CLM's Safety Committee as well as CLM’s Medicare Part D Committee. NH Hospitel Liaison,



Bearry C. Quimby

B:lrbor Honu, Inc, Nuhua, New Hampshnc November 1993-hme 2000

jinstor: Involved in all aspects of operating & housing snd
u'c:unmtpmglmﬁne chentshvmgmmppomdhommgmﬂzcgmlimmammhdmg
policy and regulation adherence for a 14-bed HUD-funded program. Managed 6 full-time and 21 fee-
for-service staff; Fostered relations with local affiliates; Improved the clinical sophistication of
program. Implemented training programs, zsmtedwnﬂ:yumwrmng,mdmducedmﬁhmver
HUD certified.

¢ W Worked 1:1 with clients to assist in overall treatment gosls. Worked

with administration snd management to develop policies and procedures to enhance the day to day
operations of the program. Created training packages to ensure the overall Counselor/Client
relationship is more productive and measursble for both billling and therapeutic productivity.

American Training, Lowell, Massachusetts April 1998-December 1998

¢ Program Director: Directed all aspects of operating a supparted housing program for 27 individuals
in the greater Lowell area, including supervision of middle management and direct-care staff, policy
and regulation adherence, and fostering program relations with local affiliates,

Sonth Middlesex Opportunity Council, Framingham, Massachusetts April 1992-April 1998
Program Mansger / Site Coordinator: Managed all aspects of operating 2 group home and
supposted housing program for chronic mentally il) adults. Ymproved program by ensuring lcensure
and regulation adberence from Department of Mental Health; Created a results-oriented team
stmosphere for program efficiency; Reduced the program budget deficit during 1996 fiscal yeer;
Reduced the staff tumover ratio within component; Worked with Jocal and arca DMH agencies and
affiliates to improve program relations and reputation.

¢  Supported Honsing Coordinator: Coordinsted all aspects of a supported housing program for four
mentally ill individuals. Managed staff oversecing clients while increasing program client turnover to
mare independent Living status; Improved client charting and documentation to ensure DMH licensure;
Improved inter-staff conmmumicstion to improve efficiency of treatment.

¢ Residentia] Cougseloy: Warked in a program that involved transitioning mentally il} individuals from
a hospital setting into community living. Assisted in moving 25 clients from state hospitel setting into
group homes located in Metro-west aree; Assisted two clients in gaining skills needed to move from
group home into independent living within the community.

.

Education:
Keene State College, Keene, New Hampshire Graduated May 1991
L ¥ ©f /Social / Coi ol

Gmwmmwuawmmmdmm
semantic-priming research studies at Keene State College. Rcsponsibﬂmﬁsmchdeddwignmg experiments,
testing subjects, collecting and analyzing dats.



CLM Center For Life Management
Permanent Housing 1

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Vic Topo President & CEO $140,660 0

Michael Bergeron Vice President & CFO $109,701 0

Lisa Madden Vice President & COO $108,478 0.05% $544

Isabel Norian, MD Medical Director $189,625 0

Barry Quimby HUD Coordinator/Program $46,359 15% $6,954

Manager




FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Continuum of Care Program, Permanent Housing for Persons with Disabilities
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.,

1.1  State Agency Name

Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Human Services

1.2  State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

1.3 Contractor Name

Community Partners of Stafford County

1.4 Contractor Address
113 Crosby Road, Suite 1
Dover, NH 03820

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number
Number
(603) 749-4015 05-95-42-423010-7927-102-

500731

1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

June 30, 2016 $40,790

1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency

Eric D. Borrin

1.10  State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9558

1.11 Contractor Signature

Tl

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Beud (ol - Exevors Deeree

1.13° Acknowledgement State ofgy H County of\_}(@%U

On be’tﬁ?o fle undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s’he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block

1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

[Seal]

Yol

el

1.13.2  Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Pedce ~

Midred @. Niles, Notasyficbhc

1.14 State Agency Signature

=

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
/MA»/M/ Ann éom/u‘)
AGJ\OCJ @CMM}

1.16 Apery the N. }Wartment of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By:

Director, On:

1.17  Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

\)\N\M\' \/\ A roh Mgt Pocpund

o sl\/[j4

1.18 Approval by th Governorhand EXecutive Coun*ll

By:

T [

On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State”), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 Ifthis Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement. '

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of 4
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each

Contractor Initials: ﬁ3 C
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certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers” Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference. :

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials: @ ~
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Continuum of Care Program
1. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT

1.1.

Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the
State are contingent upon receipt of federal funds under the Continuum of Care Grant.
The State has applied for the Continuum of Care Grant and will continue to perform due
diligence in the application process. However, the State makes no representation that it
will receive the funds. In no event shall the State be liable for costs incurred or
payment of any services performed by the Contractor prior to the State’s receipt of
federal funds applied for in the Continuum of Care Grant.

2. SERVICES

2.1.

2.2

2.3.

24.

2.5.

Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds from the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Continuum of Care Program, the Contractor
shall provide a permanent housing program that shall serve six (6) homeless individuals
and families with disabilities.

The goal of this program is to facilitate the movement of homeless individuals and
families to permanent housing and maximum self-sufficiency.

To be eligible for contract services, individuals and families must be homeless as
defined in HUD regulations. The Contractor must obtain and retain appropriate
documentation.

The Contractor shall provide these services according to HUD regulations as outlined in
Public Law 102-550, 24 CFR Part 578 Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid
Transition to Housing: Continuum of Care Program interim rule, and other written HUD
policies and directives.

Each program participant shall have an employment assessment and employment
goals included in the individual service plan, as appropriate.

3. PROGRAM REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

The Contractor shall submit the following reports:

3.1.1. Annual Performance Report: Within thirty (30) days after the Completion Date, an
Annual Performance Report (APR) shall be submitted to the BHHS that
summarizes the results of the Project Activities, showing in particular how the
Project Activities have been performed. The Annual Performance Report shall
be in the form required or specified by the State.

3.1.2. Other Reports as requested by the State.

All programs under this contract are required to be licensed to provide client level data
into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS).
Programs under this contract must be familiar with and follow NH HMIS policy, including
specific information that is required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time
required for data entry. Current NH HMIS policy can be accessed electronically through
the following website: http://www.nh-hmis.org.

Failure to submit the above reports or enter data into NH-HMIS in a timely fashion could
result in the delay or withholding of reimbursements until such reports are received or
data entries are confirmed by the BHHS.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

4. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION

41,

4.2.

4.3.
4.4.

4.5.

The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff attend all meetings or trainings
requested by the BHHS. To the extent possible, BHHS shall notify the contractor of the
need to attend such meetings five working days in advance of each meeting.

The Bureau Administrator of BHHS or designee may observe performance, activities
and documents under this Agreement; however, these personnel may not unreasonably
interfere with contractor performance.

The Contractor shall inform BHHS of any staffing changes.

Contract records shall be retained for a period of five (5) years following completion of
the contract and receipt of final payment by the Contractor, or until an audit is
completed and all questions arising there from are resolved, whichever is later.

Changes to the contract services that do not affect its scope, duration, or financial
limitations may be made upon mutual agreement between the Contractor and the
BHHS.

5. FINANCIAL

5.1.

Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor shall utilize
Continuum of Care Program agreement value specified in Exhibit B of this agreement
from the HUD Continuum of Care Program, for contract services.

5.1.1. Operating Expenses

5.1.1.1. Eligible operating expenses include maintenance and repair of housing,
property taxes and insurance (including property and car), scheduled
payments to reserve for replacement of major systems of the housing
(provided that the payments must be based on the useful life of the
system and expected replacement cost), building security for a structure
where more than fifty percent of the units or area is paid for with grant
funds, utilities (including electricity, gas and water), furniture and
equipment.

5.1.1.2. Ineligible costs include rental assistance and operating costs in the same
project, operating costs of emergency shelter- and supportive service-
only facilities, maintenance and repair of housing where the costs of
maintaining and repairing the housing are included in the lease.

5.1.2. Supportive Services

5.1.2.1. Eligible supportive services costs must comply with all HUD regulations
in 24 CFR 578.53. Eligible services are available to those individuals
actively participating in the permanent housing program.

5.1.2.2. Eligible costs include mental health services, case management
services, salaries of Contractor staff providing supportive services,
reasonable one-time moving costs (truck rental and hiring a moving
company), child-care costs for establishing and operating child care, and
providing child-care vouchers for children from families experiencing
homelessness (including providing meals and snacks and
comprehensive and coordinated developmental activities), education
services, employment assistance and job training skills, housing search
and counseling services, legal services (fees charged by licensed

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

5.1.2.3.

attorneys and by person(s) under the supervision of licensed attorneys,
for advice and representation in matters that interfere with the homeless
individual or family's ability to obtain and retain housing), outpatient
health services, transportation services, and utility deposits.

Ineligible costs include staff training, fundraising, conference attendance,
and court fines incurred by participants.

5.1.3. Rental Assistance

CA/DHHS/100213

5.1.3.1.

5.1.3.2.

5.1.3.3.

5.1.3.4.

5.1.3.5.

5.1.3.6.

5.1.3.7.

5.1.3.8.

Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for homeless individuals
and families. Rental assistance cannot be provided to a program
participant who is already receiving rental assistance, or living in a
housing unit receiving rental assistance or operating assistance through
other federal, State, or local sources.

The rental assistance may be short term, up to 3 months of rent; medium
term, for 3-24 months; or long-term, for longer than 24 months of rent
and must be administered in accordance with the policies and
procedures established by the Continuum as set forth in 24 CFR
578.7(a)(9) and 24 CFR 578.51.

Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to
exceed 2 months of rent. An advance payment of the last month’s rent
may be provided to the landlord, in addition to the security deposit and
payment of first month’s rent.

Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit if the rent is reasonable.
The contractor must determine whether the rent charged for the unit
receiving rental assistance is reasonable in relation to rents being
charged for comparable unassisted units, taking into account the
location, size, type, quality, amenities, facilities, and management and
maintenance of each unit.

The Contractor may use grant funds in an amount not to exceed one
month’s rent to pay for any damage to housing due to the action of a
program participant.

Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housing codes,
licensing requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act,
and any other requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is
located regarding the condition of the structure and operation of the
housing or services.

The Contractor must provide one of the following types of rental
assistance: Tenant-based, Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental
assistance as described by HUD in 24 CFR 578.51.

Tenant-based rental assistance is rental assistance in which program
participants choose housing of an appropriate size in which to reside.
When necessary to facilitate the coordination of supportive services,
recipients and sub recipients may require program participants to live in
a specific area for their entire period of participation, or in a specific
structure for the first year and in a specific area for the remainder of their
period of participation. Short and medium term rental assistance
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

provided under the Rapid ReHousing program component must be
tenant based rental assistance.

5.1.3.9. Sponsor-based rental assistance is provided through contracts between
the recipient and sponsor organization. A sponsor may be a private,
nonprofit organization, or a community mental health agency established
as a public nonprofit organization. Program participants must reside in
housing owned or leased by the sponsor.

5.1.3.10. Project-based rental assistance is provided through a contract with the
owner of an existing structure, where the owner agrees to lease the
subsidized units to program participants. Program participants will not
retain rental assistance if they move.

5.1.3.11. For project-based, sponsor-based, or tenant-based rental assistance,
program participants must enter into a lease agreement for a term of at
least one year, which is terminable for cause. The leases must be
automatically renewable upon expiration for terms that are a minimum of
one month long, except on prior notice by either party.

5.1.4. Administrative Costs

5.1.4.1. Administrative costs include: Preparing program budgets, schedules and
amendments, developing systems for assuring compliance with program
requirements, developing interagency agreements and agreements with
sub recipients and contractors to carry out program activities, preparing
reports and other documents related to the program for submission to
HUD, evaluating program results against stated objectives, travel costs
incurred for official business in carrying out the program, administrative
services performed under third party contracts or agreements (including
such services as general legal services, accounting services, and audit
services), and other costs for goods and services required for
administration of the program (including such goods and services as
rental or purchase of equipment, insurance, utilities, office supplies, and
rental and maintenance, but not purchase, of office space).

5.2. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD regulations
and policies described in 24 CFR 578.73 (a) (b) (c).

5.2.1. The contractor must match all grant funds except for leasing funds, with no less
than twenty-five percent of funds or in-kind contributions from other sources.

5.2.2. Match requirements are to be documented with each payment request.

5.3. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible and
allowable costs as stated in Section 5.1 Exhibit A. The Contractor must have written
approval from the State prior to billing for any other expenses.

5.4. The Contractor may charge program participants rent and utilities (heat, hot water);
however, the amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified in HUD
regulations (24 CFR 583.315). Other services such as cable, air conditioning,
telephone, Internet access, cleaning, parking, pool charges, etc. are at the participant’s
option.

5.5. The contractor shall have any staff charged in full or part to this contract or counted as
match complete weekly or bi-weekly timesheets.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit B

METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

Continuum of Care Program

The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A —
Continuum of Care Program.

This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

NH General Fund: Not applicable

Federal Funds:

CFDA #: 14.267

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development
Program Title: Continuum of Care Program

Total Amount Continuum of Care Program;

July 1, 2015 - June 30, 2016: not to exceed $40,790
Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program;
Operating Cost: $5,513

Supportive Services: $34,238
Administrative Costs: _$1.039
Total program amount: $40,790

1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund
the Contractor for operations, supportive services, leasing, rental assistance and
administration utilizing funds provided through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) Continuum of Care Program, in an amount not to exceed and for the
time period specified above.

2. REPORTS

As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in
accordance with the regulations that implement OMB Circular A-133. Three (3) copies
of the audited financial report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of the completion
of said report to the State.

2.2. Where the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, within
ninety (90) days after the Completion or Termination Date, one copy of an audited
financial report shall be submitted to the State. Said audit shall be conducted utilizing
the guidelines set forth in “Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program
Activities, and Functions” by the Comptroller General of the United States.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit B

3. PROJECT COSTS: PAYMENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW BY THE STATE

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean all
expenses directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the
Project Activities, as determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in
accordance with Public Law 102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in
OMB Circular A-87 as revised from time to time and with the rules, regulations, and
guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit subcontractors shall meet the
requirements of OMB Circular A-122.

3.2. Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in
consideration of the satisfactory completion of the services to be performed under this
Agreement, the State agrees to fund the Contractor for operations, supportive services,
leasing, rental assistance and administration utilizing funds provided through the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development Title XIV Housing programs under the
Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act (HEARTH Act),
Subtitle A-Housing Assistance (Public Law 102-550) in an amount not to exceed as
specified above. Reimbursement requests for all Project Costs shall be submitted on a
monthly basis and accompanied by an invoice from the Contractor for the amount of
each requested disbursement along with a payment request form as designated by the
State, which shall be completed and signed by the Contractor. The Contractor shall
provide additional financial information if requested by the State to verify expenses.

3.3. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the
Services, and upon receipt of the Annual Performance Report, Termination Report or
Audited Financial Report, the State may review all Project Costs incurred by the
Contractor and all payments made to date. Upon such review the State shall disallow
any items of expenses that are not determined to be allowable or are determined to be
in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed
expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such disallowance. If the State disallows
costs for which payment has not yet been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs. Any
amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this agreement are subject to recapture
pursuant to 24 CFR Subsection 576.55. The funds authorized to be expended under
this Agreement shall be used only for operations, supportive services, leasing, rental
assistance and administration or reimbursement for expenditures for operations,
supportive services, leasing, and rental assistance and administration, provided by the
Contractor for the project period and operating years of the Continuum of Care Program
as approved by HUD and in accordance with the Continuum of Care Program
Regulations, published at 24 CFR Part578.

4. USE OF GRANT FUNDS

4.1. The State agrees to provide payment for actual costs, up to the not to exceed amount
for the’ Continuum of Care Program as specified in this Exhibit, as defined by HUD
under the provisions of P.L. 102-550 and applicable reguiations.

4.2. The Contractor may amend the contract budget through line item increases, decreases
or the creation of new line items provided these amendments do not exceed the
contract price. Such amendments shall only be made upon written request to and
written approval from the State.
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4.3. Conformance to OMB Circular A-110: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance
with procedures, requirements, and principles specified in OMB Circular A-110.

5. CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

5.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting
procedures which assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant funds and
-any required nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed in
direct operations of the Contractor.

5.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with
Attachment G of A-102, “Standards of Contractor Financial Management Systems” or
such equivalent system as the State may require. Requests for payment shall be made
according to EXHIBIT B, Section 3.2 of this Agreement.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as foliows:

1.

Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shail be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shali be established:;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his

attorney or guardian.
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and ail the obiigations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shail have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and ail original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it h
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and j#és 50 ¢
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert. pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL.: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the Generai Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract, is deleted and the following
subparagraph is added:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all claims of bodily injury, death or property
damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $1,000,000 per occurrence
with additional general liability umbrella insurance coverage of not less than $2,000,000 per

occurrence; and
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part 1l of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3.  Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction:;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. .The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name: ffy ATy PARTNGRS OF STRATOCD Coyrry

o Boin o
J NV
Date Nan¥é: BLJAN CO L L INS
Title: EXECUTIVE D IRECTDR_
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Suppoert Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:CowmunyiTy FaR TNERS 0F STRASORD ch\ry -,

/ 4 ¢
dA- 15 Bu{o- |
Date Name: Brian Col lins

Title:Execwtave Directol”

Exhibit E — Certification Regarding Lobbying Contractor I

CUIDHHS/110713 Page 1 of 1 Date ur‘]//f



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

"o T

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: €2

[J//Z/I{

Date

Title: Execcrtive Director
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principies and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or

debarment.
Exhibit G ( @L)
Contractor Initials

Certification of Compliance with requirements pertaining to Federal Nondiscrimination, Equal Treatment of Faith-Based Organizations
and Whistleblower protections
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:Commuy bidy VA TNBILS OF STL AEEDRD Coupsry

/ “ra-
\{ <113 /’é’(h/ )
Date Name: Brian Coilins
Title: Executive. Director

Exhibit G R
Contractor Initials
Certification of Compliance with requirements pertaining to Federal Nondiscrimination, Equal Treatment of Faith-Based Organizations

and Whistleblower protections
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, alsoc known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's

representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: CoMMuUMITY PARTNERS oF STEAFFRD LOUNTY

y-1- 16 B

Date ' Name: BrianCo 1S
Title:  Fxecutve Director

B

Exhibit H — Certification Regarding CQmLangr]jﬁals

Environmental Tobacco Smoke
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. “Breach’ shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. ‘Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shail have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. ‘HITECH Act’ means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
20089.

h. “HIPAA’ means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual® shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j- “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials
Health Insurance Portability Act —
Business Associate Agreement \f .
Page 1 of 6 Date -1



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

(2)

“‘Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

“Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

‘Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
il As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
M. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials %“)f e
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

C. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (l). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor’'s business associate
agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials ‘bl/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

J- Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual’s request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual’'s request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

l. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business

3/2014 Exhibit 1 Contractor initials C
Health Insurance Portability Act

Business Associate Agreement 4, ((
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reqgulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractorlnitialsﬂ ;) .
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit |. o
Be bavioral Heai+hv Developmeni@] SCfV’LCSG'F%UH Ine.

NH 1)/'7‘-2‘7‘ ( DLA (ommuniy Pectne cs ol Staltsrd Coun J
The State Name of/be

rlzed resentatlve

ature of Authorized Representative

bBrian Colline
Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative

Acscoc, Atis / W{J@an-&i whoz QD@ZCT ot

Title of Authorized Represéntative Title of Authorized Representative
e /
a7/ Y-7-1
Date r Date

3/2014 Exhibit |
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement
Page 6 of 6




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual

Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on

data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the

initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over

$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the

Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any

subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1. Name of entity

Amount of award

Funding agency

NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants

Program source

Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action

Location of the entity

Principle place of performance

Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)

Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not aiready available through reporting to the SEC.

2OONO A WN

o

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: Commun Ty PAITNERS OF sTAFFORSD cpyiry

Y -9er§ B (h—

Date Name:Brian Cotlins
Title: Execcct ve Director

Exhibit J ~ Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials Ej
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FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: ___/ 4 740669/

2. Inyour business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

2< NO YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Exhibit J ~ Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials @C’

Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance g
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State of Nefr Hampslive
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that COMMUNITY PARTNERS OF STRAFFORD COUNTY is a
New Hampshire nonprofit corporation filed October 27, 2003. I further certify that it is in

good standing as far as this office is concerned, having paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOQF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 8" day of April, A.D. 2015

Fy Ll

William M, Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

l C IS TOPBER @Mﬂg/ , do hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Agenéy; cannot be corntract s&gnatory)
ces aﬂs"/raﬁgro/ (IOIJﬂ\ler’c .

ral Hea Ithr developmental Seyvi
1. | am a duly elected Officer of 583”% Vclgmm/ﬁ,m,g Partne: 'o: of- Stral, écd CoLLﬂ'\/‘f-
(Agengy Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on 4)&:/ 7 20/S”
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the Briaq Collins
{Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgomg resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the 2 day of e/ .20£

(Date Contralt Signed)

4. Brien Collins is the duly elected ___Axecutive Director
{Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)
of the Agency.

(Signature of the Elected Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County ofﬁﬂ%@d_ A
7 day of/?ﬂ??l, 2018

By C HWAUSICPHEA  LPrewiPS
(Name of Elected Officer of the Agéncy) / \(@7%

"~ (Notary PL'H\C/JUST’G: of the Peace)

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this

(NOTARY SEAL)

Commission Expires: / / ?

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations July 1, 2005
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal



Client#: 950869

ACORD.

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

BEHAVHEA7

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
6/30/2014

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFOCRMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy{les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certaln policies may require an endorsemont, A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER
US| Insurance Services LLC

PO Box 406
Portland, ME 04112-0406

ST
PHONE " 207-239-3500 [T% oy 781-376-5035
RoORESS:

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC
msurer A : Phlladelphia Indemnity Insuranc 18058
INSURED .
Behavioral Health & Developmental Svcs :::::zzz NA Employers Insurance Company 13089
dba Communlty Partners msuxsﬂo;
113 Crosby Road Suite 1 INSURERLE
Dover, NH 03820 :
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BEL.OW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUGCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

X TYPE OF INSURANCE A%%LWV%R POLICY NUMBER (m‘d%/'ﬁ% (rﬁﬁl"é%y W LumITs
A | GENERALLIABILITY PHPK1196170 07/01/2014(07/01/2015 EACH OCCURRENCE 51,000,000
X| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY BRSO ENTED o) | $100,000
] CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR MED EXP {Any one person) | $10,000
| PERSONAL & ADVINJURY | 51,000,000
|| GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000
GENT AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - GOMPIOP AGG | $3,000,000
poLIcY FRO: Loc $
A [ AutomoBILE LABILITY PHPK1196170 07/01/2014(07/01/2015 2 onamy oo M7 141,000,000
X| aNY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per porson) | $
~ M‘"Ew” i PP ¢
er a: N
| Al AUTOS {Per accident s
A | X|UMBRELLALIAB | X | occuR PHUB464639 07/01/2014|07/01/2015 EACH OCCURRENCE $3,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $3,000,000
DED ’ Xl revenTions10,000 — - $
B | ERLOveRs: LiABITY “n ECC6004000067 07/01/2014|07/01/2018 X [¥G& | 3
ANY PROPRIETORPARTNER/EXECUTIVE NIA E.L. EACH ACGIDENT $500,000
(Mandatory In NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $500,000
gg?c%l%ﬁ%% OF OPERATIONS belowr E.L. DISEASE - PoLIcY UmiT | $500,000
A |Property PHPK1196170 07/01/2014|07/01/2015 See Below*
A |Director&Officer PHSD955105 07/01/2014/07/01/2015 $5,000,000
A |Professional PHPK1196170 07/01/2014|07/01/2015 $1MM Ea Claim/$3MM Agg

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Atlach ACORD 101, Additional Romarks Schadule, If more space Is requlred)

Property*

Blanket Building: $1,793,248
Blanket Contents: $1,282,500
Blanket Computers: $700,000
{See Attached Descriptions)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

State of NH Dept of Human Svcs
Bureau of Homeless & Housing
Attn: Anne Pocock

105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

O Gl

ACORD 25 (2010/05) 1 of2
#512830246/M12826065

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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DESCRIPTIONS (Continued from Page 1)

Employee Theft: $500,000
This Evidence of Insurance is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the holder
and does not amend, extend or alter the coverage afforded by policies designated on the Evidence.

SAGITTA 25.3 (2010/05) 2 of 2
#512830246/M12826065




113 Crosby Road
Suite |

Dover, NH 03820
(603) 516-9300
Fax: (603) 743-3244

50 Chestnut Strect
Dover, NH 03820
(603) 516-9300

Fax: (603) 743-1850

25 OId Dover Road
Rochester, NH 03867
(603) 516-9300

Fax: (603) 335-9278

A United Way
Partner Agency

Mission: Community Partners connects our clients and their families to the
opportunities and possibilities for full participation in their communities.

Vision: We serve those who experience emotional distress, mental illnesses,
substance use disorders, developmental disabilities, chronic health needs,
acquired brain disorder, as well as those who are in need of information and
referral to access long-term supports and services.

We strive to be an organization that consistently delivers outstanding services
and supports that are person-focused and dedicated to full participation in
communities.

We will take leadership roles in educating our community network, families, and
the public to reduce stigma and to increase self-determination and personal
empowerment.

We are committed to evidence-based and outcome-driven practices.

We will invest in our staff to further professional development and foster an
environment of innovation.

Community Partners

Behavioral Health & Developmental Services of Strafford County, Inc.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

and

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

June 30, 2014 and 2013

With Independent Auditor's Report



B BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors
Behavioral Health & Developmental Services of Strafford County, Inc.
d/b/a Community Partners and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Behavioral Health &
Developmental Services of Strafford County, Inc. d/b/a Community Partners and Subsidiaries (the
Organization), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 2014
and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional revenue and expenses and
cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error. :

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Bangor, ME » Portland, ME ¢ Manchester, NH o Charleston, WV
www.berrydunn.com



Board of Directors

Behavioral Health & Developmental Services of Strafford County, Inc.
d/b/a Community Partners and Subsidiaries

Page 2

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Organization, as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the
changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

Other Matter
Report on Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The consolidating statements of financial position and consolidating statements
of activities are presented for purposes of additional analysis, rather than to present the financial
position and changes in net assets of the individual entities, and are not a required part of the
consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
auditing standards. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

&ug Disnn MMl § Furder, L€

Manchester, New Hampshire
November 4, 2014



BEHAVIORAL HEALTH & DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES OF STRAFFORD COUNTY, INC. D/B/A
COMMUNITY PARTNERS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

June 30, 2014 and 2013

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts
Grants receivable

Prepaid expenses

Property and equipment, net

Total assets
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Refundable advances
Due to the State
Loan fund
Notes payable
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note 8)
Net assets
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2014 2013
$ 1,688,233 $ 3,713,671
161,186 238,344
2,994,797 2,353,472
106,509 106,526
233,647 278,875
2,441,022 2,153,082
$_7,625,394 $_8.843.970
$ 2,160,347 $ 2,001,550
787,904 962,155
- 1,340,088
88,996 88,818
842,784 714,337
3.880,031 5,106,948
3,701,263 3,666,713
44.100 70,309
3,745,363 3,737,022
$ 7.625.394 $ 83843970

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BEHAVIORAL HEALTH & DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES OF STRAFFORD COUNTY, INC. D/B/A

COMMUNITY PARTNERS AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Activities

Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

2014 2013
Changes in unrestricted net assets
Public support and revenue
Medicaid revenue $ 23,304,027 $ 22,742,375
Medicare revenue 229,854 147,225
Client resources 1,490,712 1,382,369
Contract revenue 1,182,715 853,503
Grant income 465,425 441,454
Interest income 522 1,377
Other program revenue 62,145 88,399
Public support 73,291 106,850
Other revenue 489,791 269,129
Total public support and revenue 27,298,482 26,032,681
Net assets released from restrictions 27,933 31,073
Total public support, revenue, and reclassifications 27,326,415 26,063,754
Expenses
Program services
Case management 1,896,638 1,932,330
Day programs and community support 6,639,532 6,523,328
Early support services and youth and family 3,321,818 3,369,271
Family support 600,208 599,153
Residential services 4,737,494 4,908,651
Combined residential, day and consolidated services 6,150,215 5,344,857
Medical services 104,930 102,565
Adult services 475,395 444 541
Emergency services 597,080 579,318
Other 689,634 426,787
Total program expenses 25,212,944 24,230,801
Supporting services
General management 2,078,921 1,763,333
Total expenses 27,291,865 25994134
Total change in unrestricted net assets 34,550 69.620
Changes in temporarily restricted net assets
United Way allocation 1,724 4,864
Net assets released from restrictions (27,933) (31.073)
Total change in temporarily restricted net assets (26,209) (26,209)
Total change in net assets 8,341 43,411
Net assets, beginning of year 3,737,022 3,693,611
Net assets, end of year $__3,745363 $__3,737,022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BEHAVIORAL HEALTH & DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES OF STRAFFORD COUNTY, INC. D/B/A
COMMUNITY PARTNERS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
(used) provided by operating activities
Depreciation _
Change in allowance for doubtful accounts
Decrease (increase) in
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable, trade
Grants receivable
Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Refundable advances
Due to the State
Loan fund

Net cash (used) provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of equipment

Cash flows from financing activities
Principal payments on long-term borrowings

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year
Supplemental disclosures

Noncash transaction - Acquisition of equipment in
exchange for note payable

2014 2013

$ 8341 $ 43,411
259,773 338,065
(117,412) 24,699
77,158 (81,825)
(523,913) (290,580)
17 (86,237)

45,228 132,573
158,797 529,158
(174,251) (34,594)
(1,340,088) 1,340,088
178 222
(1,606,172) _1.914.980
(372,713) (260,050)
(46,553) (47 570)
(2,025,438) 1,607,360
3,713,671 2.106.311

$_1.688,233 $_3.713.671

$ 175000 $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BEHAVIORAL HEALTH & DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES OF STRAFFORD COUNTY, INC. D/B/A
COMMUNITY PARTNERS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2014 and 2013

Nature of Activities

Behavioral Health & Developmental Services of Strafford County, Inc. d/b/a Community Partners
(Community Partners) is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation providing a wide range of community
based services (see consolidated statement of functional revenue and expenses for various programs
offered) for individuals, and their families, with developmental disabilites and/or mental iliness.
Community Partners also supports families with children who have chronic health needs. Community
Partners is currently operating as two divisions: Developmental Services and Behavioral Health
Services.

Community Partners is the sole shareholder of Lighthouse Management Services, Inc. which was
organized to perform accounting and management functions for other not-for-profit entities.

Community Partners is the sole beneficiary of the Community Partners Foundation (the Foundation)
which was established exclusively for the benefit and support of Community Partners. To that end, the
Foundation receives and accepts gifts and funds.

The Foundation received and disbursed the following funds:

2014 2013
Funds received $ 29,546 $ 24,627
Funds disbursed 27,315 23,587

S___2231 $___ 1,040

The Foundation has received and disbursed the following funds since its inception in 2007:

Funds received $ 255,164
Funds disbursed 185,350
$ 69.814

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Community Partners, Lighthouse
Management Services, Inc., and Community Partners Foundation (collectively, the Organization).
All material intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.




BEHAVIORAL HEALTH & DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES OF STRAFFORD COUNTY, INC. D/B/A
COMMUNITY PARTNERS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2014 and 2013

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Presentation

Net assets and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified as follows based on
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions:

Unrestricted net assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Temporarily restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may be or
will be met by actions of the Organization and/or the passage of time. When a donor restriction
expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished,
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the
consolidated statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Permanently restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that they be
maintained permanently by the Organization. As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Organization had
no permanently restricted net assets.

Contributions

Contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by
the donor. Amounts received that are designated for future periods or restricted by the donor for
specific purpose are reported as increases in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets,
depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net
assets released from restrictions. The Organization records donor-restricted contributions whose
restrictions are met in the same reporting period as unrestricted support in the year of the gift.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the U.S. Internal
Revenue Code to operate as a not-for-profit organization.

Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC) Topic 740,
Income Taxes, establishes financial accounting and disclosure requirements for recognition and
measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken. Management has reviewed the tax
provisions for the Organization under FASB ASC Topic 740 and determined it did not have a
material impact on the Organization's consolidated financial statements.




BEHAVIORAL HEALTH & DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES OF STRAFFORD COUNTY, INC. D/B/A
COMMUNITY PARTNERS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2014 and 2013

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity date of less than
three months to be cash equivalents. The cash equivalents represent repurchase agreements as
of June 30, 2014 and 2013.

The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed
federally insured limits. It has not experienced any losses in such accounts. Management believes
it is not exposed to any significant risk on cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from balances
outstanding at year-end. Management provides for probable uncollectible accounts after
considering each category of receivable individually, and estimates an allowance according to the
nature of the receivable. Allowances are estimated from historical performance and projected
trends. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts
are written off through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to trade accounts
receivable. As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, allowances were recorded in the amount of $153,112
and $270,524, respectively.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, while donations of property and equipment are
recorded as support at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Expenditures for repairs
and maintenance are charged against operations. Renewals and betterments which materially
extend the life of the assets are capitalized. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their
use and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are reported as
restricted contributions. Absent donor stipulations regarding how long those donated assets must
be maintained, the Organization reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or
acquired assets are placed in service. The Organization reclassifies temporarily restricted net
assets to unrestricted net assets at that time. Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method
in amounts designed to amortize the costs of the assets over their estimated lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements 15-39 years
Equipment and furniture 3-7 years

Vehicles 5 years

Refundable Advances

The Organization's refundable advances consist of funds received in advance for services to be
performed at a later date, amounts due to Medicaid and estimated Medicaid recoupment
settlement reserves for Medicaid eligibility audits, and certain pass through funds (Note.2).

-10 -



BEHAVIORAL HEALTH & DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES OF STRAFFORD COUNTY, INC. D/B/A
COMMUNITY PARTNERS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2014 and 2013

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing various programs and other activites have been summarized on a
functional basis in the consolidated statements of activities and functional revenue and expenses.
Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services
benefited.

Reclassification

Certain amounts in the 2013 consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform
to the current year's presentation.

Restricted Cash

The Organization is currently serving as a pass-through entity for the Council for Children and
Adolescents with Chronic Health Conditions Loan Guaranty Program. This program is operated
and administered by a New Hampshire bank. Accordingly, as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the
Organization held cash totaling $88,996 and $88,818, respectively, which was restricted for this
program. A corresponding amount has been recorded as a liability.

Additionally, the Organization is administering the Council for Children and Adolescents with
Chronic Health Conditions Program. The total cash restricted for this program as of June 30, 2014
and 2013 was $43,258 and $53,238, respectively. A corresponding amount has been recorded as
a liability and is classified within refundable advances.

During 2013, the Organization established a self funded insurance policy. As part of this transition,
the Organization also established a health reimbursement account to pay for a portion of
employee's medical expenses. The total cash restricted for this use as of June 30, 2014 and 2013,
was $28,932 and $96,288.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

2014 2013
Land and buildings $1,859,893 $ 1,859,893
Building improvements 1,562,119 1,554,720
Vehicles 763,129 749,459
Equipment and furniture 2,630,981 2,112,061

6,816,122 6,276,133

Less accumulated depreciation 4,375,100 4.123.051

$2441,022 $_2,153,082

-11 -



BEHAVIORAL HEALTH & DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES OF STRAFFORD COUNTY, INC. D/B/A
COMMUNITY PARTNERS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2014 and 2013

Due to the State

Effective March 2013, the New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS)
implemented a new Medicaid Management Information System (MMIS) for administering and
managing costs for the New Hampshire Medicaid Program. During the implementation period,
Medicaid claims were not accepted by DHHS. DHHS anticipated this transition difficulty and issued
the Organization transition payments, based on past claim history, to cover the three-week
transition period. As actual claims were processed by DHHS in the MMIS system, Medicaid
recoupments were reduced by related payments. As of June 30, 2013, a liability representing
$1,340,088 of cash advances received by the Organization and not yet applied against remittances
had been reported on the consolidated statement of financial position. As of June 30, 2014, all
cash advances had been recouped by the State.

Line of Credit

At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Organization has a revolving line of credit agreement with a bank
amounting to $1,500,000. The line requires monthly interest payments on the unpaid principal
balance at the rate of 1% over the bank's stated index, which was 4.25% during the years ended
June 30, 2014 and 2013. The line of credit is collateralized by a security interest in all business
assets. The Organization is required to annually observe 30 consecutive days without an
outstanding balance. At June 30, 2014 and 2013, there was no outstanding balance on the line.

-12-



BEHAVIORAL HEALTH & DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES OF STRAFFORD COUNTY, INC. D/B/A
COMMUNITY PARTNERS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2014 and 2013

6. Notes Payable

Notes payable consisted of the following:

N
-
=N
N
(e
—
w

Developmental Services
Note payable to a bank, payable in monthly instaliments of
$1,117, including interest at 4.15%, through April 2016 with
one final payment of all unpaid principal and interest due at
maturity; collateralized by certain real estate. The note is a
participating loan with New Hampshire Health and Education
Facilities Authority. $ 124857 $ 132822

Note payable to a bank, modified on October 17, 2012. At the
time of modification, the interest rate changed from 4.55% to
4.15%. Monthly principal and interest installments due
changed from $2,326 to $2,272, through July 2017 with one
payment of all unpaid principal and interest due at maturity;
collateralized by certain real estate. The note is a
participating loan with New Hampshire Health and Education
Facilities Authority. 272,871 288,512

Note payable to a bank, payable in monthly installments of
$3,167, including interest at 3.24%, through April 2019;
collateralized by certain equipment. 169.619 -

Total Developmental Services 567,347 421,334

Behavioral Health Services
Note payable to a bank, payable in monthly installments of
$2,464, including interest at 4.15%, through April 2016 with
one final payment of all unpaid principal and interest due at
maturity; collateralized by certain real estate and an
assignment of certain leases and rents. The note is a
participating loan with New Hampshire Health and Education
Facilities Authority. 275,437 293,003

$__842.784 $__ 714,337
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BEHAVIORAL HEALTH & DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES OF STRAFFORD COUNTY, INC. D/B/A
COMMUNITY PARTNERS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2014 and 2013

The scheduled maturities of long term debt are as follows:

2015 $ 76,000
2016 425,000
2017 53,000
2018 256,000
2019 32,784

$__ 842784

Cash paid for interest approximates interest expense for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

At June 30, 2014 and 2013, temporarily restricted net assets were $44,100 and $70,309,
respectively. The Organization's restricted assets consist of vehicles contributed to the
Organization from the State of New Hampshire under grant programs. These contributed vehicles
are to be used for the transportation of the Organization's clients.

Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases

The Organization leases various office facilities and equipment under operating lease agreements.
Expiration dates range from September 2012 through August 2018. Total rent expense charged to
operations was $250,960 in 2014 and $228,780 in 2013.

Minimum operating lease payments for subsequent years ending after June 30, 2014 are as
follows:

Total
2015 $ 321,402
2016 320,353
2017 289,810
2018 181,309
2019 778
$_1.113.652

-14 -



BEHAVIORAL HEALTH & DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES OF STRAFFORD COUNTY, INC. D/B/A
COMMUNITY PARTNERS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2014 and 2013

Self-Insurance

The Organization has a self-insured health care plan for substantially all of its employees. The
Organization has obtained reinsurance coverage to limit its exposure associated with this plan
individually of $30,000 with an aggregate limit of 125% of the expected claims: At June 30, 2014
and 2013, the Organization has accrued $164,737 and $300,082, respectively, under the self-
insurance contract.

Litigation
The Organization is involved in litigation arising in the normal course of business. After consultation
with legal counsel, management estimates these matters will be resolved without a material

adverse effect on the Organization's future financial position or resuilts of operations.

Concentrations

For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, approximately 85% and 87%, respectively, of the
support and revenue of the Organization was derived from Medicaid. The future existence of the
Organization is dependent upon continued support from Medicaid.

The accounts receivable due from Medicaid were:

2014 013
Developmental Services $ 1,685,928 $ 1,933,245
Behavioral Health Services 874.971 457,397

$_2560,899 $_2.390,642

In order for the Developmental Services division of the Organization to receive this support, it must
be formally approved by the State of New Hampshire, Bureau of Developmental Service, as the
provider of services for developmentally disabled individuals for Strafford County in New
Hampshire. This designation is received by the Organization every five years. The current
designation expires in September 2015.

In order for the Behavioral Health Services division of the Organization to receive this support, it
must be formally approved by the State of New Hampshire, Bureau of Behavioral Health, as the
community mental health provider for Strafford County in New Hampshire. This designation is
received by the Organization every five years. The current designation expires in August 2016.
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BEHAVIORAL HEALTH & DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES OF STRAFFORD COUNTY, INC. D/B/A
COMMUNITY PARTNERS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2014 and 2013

10. Retirement Plan

The Organization maintains a tax sheltered annuity plan that is offered to all eligible employees.
The plan includes an employer contribution equal to 3% of each eligible employee's salary. Total
costs incurred for the plan during the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 were $233,038 and
$231,559, respectively. The total expense for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 for the
Developmental Services division was $109,548 and $113,628, respectively, and for the Behavioral
Health Services division was $123,490 and $117,931, respectively.

11. Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles, management has considered transactions or events
occurring through November 4, 2014, which is the date that the consolidated financial statements
were available to be issued.
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Chris Roundy Board of Directors |President
Kathleen Boisclair Board of Directors |Vice President
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Greg Betts Board of Directors
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John Guy Board of Directors
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Kerri Larkin Board of Directors
John Lowy Board of Directors
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BRIAN J. COLLINS

Summary:

A seasoned Executive Director with broad experience in managing complex nonprofit
organizations; manages with a hands-on, approachable style and a strong, mission-driven
value system.

Iixperience:

1995 - Present Executive Director
Behavioral Health & Developmental Services of Strafford County, Inc.,
D/B/A Community Partners of Strafford County, Dover, NH

CEO of a designated regional Area Agency for Developmental Disabilities and
Community Mental Health Center serving over 3200 people with 350 staff and $25
million budget; implemented needed programmatic changes stemming from long-term
financial losses, including negative fund balances; vastly improved quality outcomes after
assuming the position in 1995; report to a 15 member Board of Directors.

e Turned around agency’s $324K negative total net assets upon arrival to $3.6 million
positive total net assets today.

¢ Successfully implemented corrective administrative measures, resulting in removal of
conditions imposed by the State of NH as a result of the impeding bankruptcy coupled
with unsatisfactory programming through FY9S,

e Provided 150 new services to waitlist consumers during the first 4 years with no
additional resources.

¢ Merged a bankrupt mental health center into organization in 2001, creating one of
only two organizational models in New Hampshire.

¢ Expanded agency mission, including becoming a Partners in Health site serving
children with chronic illness and their families, running State-wide loan program for
families with chronically ill members and expanded business office operations
through contractual means with other not for profit organizations.

. Statewide Leadership role as a founder of both the Community Support Network Inc.,
a trade organization for the Area Agency system, and the NH Community Behavioral
Health Association, a trade organization for the mental health system.

» Regional leader in a variety of social service organizations and associations that
advance human service causes including chronic illness, elder services, supporting
families of children with chronic illness, mental health court, sexual assault victims,
employment for people with disabilities and work with schools and pre-schools.

Area Agency responsibilities include Early Supports and Services for children birth-three,
Family Support Services for all families of children with disabilities (including respite,

Brian Collins
Page 2




parent to parent, transition supports, benefits application assistance, support groups,
clinical education), Adult Services including Service Coordination, employment and day
habilitation, residential, community and in-home supports, contract administration of
provider organizations, consumer directed programs.

Community Mental Health Centers serve individuals with severe and persistent mental
illness including psychiatry, case management, community functional supports, therapy,
and medication management. For children and families this includes an at risk category,
but the same types of intervention as for adults, providing 24 hour/7 day emergency
services, working in local hospitals assessing at risk to the individual or the community.

1989 - 1995 Executive Director
The Plus Company, Nashua, NH

Chief Executive Officer of a non-profit human service agency serving over 150 people
with disabilities in New Hampshire and Massachusetts. Agency provides residential,
vocational, and medical supports in over 50 locations. Agency employs 125 staff with a
total budget of $4.5 million. Report to a 15 member Board of Directors.

¢ Eliminated debt service after Agency had lost $500,000 over a prior five-year period.
Agency’s surplus exceeded $600,000 over five year tenure.

e Increased operational budget over $1 million. Contract with 25 funding streams,
which include three states, numerous non-profit agencies, school systems, and private
companies.

¢ Eliminated the need for a sheltered workshop by developing community jobs and
individualized day options for over 75 consumers. Negotiated the sale of the
sheltered workshop building and relocated the agency headquarters. The move retired
all debt service.

¢ Downsized all group home populations by developing individualized and small group
options. Grew the number of consumers living in small group settings from 45 to 70
people during a five-year period. .

¢ Increased fund raising and public relation, including a high profile annual breakfast
with over 400 people in attendance.

1985 - 1989 Program Planning and Review Specialist
New Hampshire DMHDS, Concord, NH

Responsible for managing $13 million of State and Federal funds, covering one-quarter of
the service system; areas of responsibilities include case management, housing,

vocational programming, respite care, early childhood intervention and family support
services. Reported to the Assistant Director of Developmental Services.

Brian Collins
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* Monitor contract compliancce to ensure cost effective service delivery system. Oversee
implementation of Supported Employment Initiative to establish program models,
funding stream, staff re-education and training, and business and industry liaisons.

s Analyze budgets to determine maximum revenue sources and maintain controls over
expenditures.

* Ensure that the Board of Directors policies and staff procedures enhance community
presence of people with severe disabilities.

» Liaison for regional area agencies and State agencies to Division of Vocational
Rehabilitation. '

¢ Ensure compliance with $2 million federal grant, to fund a five-year plan to create
employment opportunities.

¢ Member of Governor’s Task Force on Employment.

1982 - 1985 Quality Assurance Administrator,
Training Coordinator, New Hampshire DMHDS

Quality: Responsible for quality assurance function statewide for Community Service
Delivery System. Led seven-person team in annual reviews of each regional area agency.
Reported to the Director of Quality Assurance.

Training: Responsible for the coordination of statewide and regional training for
Community Service Deliver System; designed Training Needs Inventory using regional
priorities to establish training needs; procured funding to provide consultants for specific
regional training and technical assistance; originated special projects, including training
annual, audio visual training packages and leisure skills handbook.

Education:

Masters in Public Administration, University of New Hampshire
BA, Communications, Boston College Evening School

Advisory Boards:

Advisory Board, University of New Hampshire Institute on Disability (UAP)

University of Hartford Rehabilitation Training Program

Virginia Commonwealth University Rehabilitation Research and Training Center.

New Hampshire Governor’s Appointment to Inter-Agency Coordinating Council.
Overseeing services to children with disabilities from birth to age three.

HHS Commissioner Stephen’s Advisory Council focused on increasing employment for
people with disabilities

Brian Collins
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Memberships:

The Association for Persons with Severe Handicaps (TASH)
American Association on Mental Retardation (AAMR)
National Rehabilitation Association (NRA)

New Hampshire Rehabilitation Association (NHRA)
American Network of Comumunity Options and Resources




Christopher D. Kozak

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

High-performance executive providing leadership, innovation and direction to support infrastructure
change and development to maximize profitability. Proven abiiity to develop and implement strategic
approaches and methodologies to create a highly effective organization that operates at or below
budgetary requirements. Excel in understanding the insurance industry and the challenges faced by
insurers and providers. Skilled in identifying and capitalizing on technology to solve business problems.
Demonstrate broad-based strengths and accomplishments in:

Leadership & Accountability * MCO Contracting

P & L Responsibility s Rate Negotiation

Strategic Planning ¢ Process and Quality Improvement
Staff Development and Team Building ¢ Corporate Presentations & Marketing

“ Professional Experience

Community Partners Dover, NH October 2010 — Present
A State designated Conununity Mental Health Program providing services to individuals

Chief Operating Officer (4/12 — present)

Director of Quality Iinprovement (10/10 — 4/12)
Senior member of the management team with responsibility for oversight of the Behavioral Health
Services Division.

Accompiishinents

» Successfully navigated the organization through the State's re-designation process. Preliminary
feedback indicated that the State will award the organization with another full 5-year designation
as a community mental health program.

s Developed and implemented several new reports, forms and other management tools that created
efficiencies in daily paper work as well as providing mangers with a dashboard-like view of data
about their specific staff/program simply by opening a Microsoft Excel file.

+ Engaged in a major change management process that has challenged veteran staff to rethink and
analyze nearly every facet of their program operation.

Dynamic Solutions NE, LLC Portsmouth, NH September 2008 — Present

Independent consulting company specializing in revenue enhancement strategies, operational automation and small application
development for behavioral health practices and sinall lealth plans.

Consultant
Founded Dynamic Solutions NE, LLC after spending nearly two decades in leadership positions in the
insurance, case management and technology fields.
Accomplisinnents
¢ Developed proposal for a custom web-based outcome measurement application to be used by 14
psychiatric treatment centers spanning six states.
+ Provided expert witness consultation in a case related to software pirating.
¢ Provide ad hoc consultation to information technology firms relative to healthcare informatics.

Casenet Inc. Bedford, MA August 2006 — July 2008

A startup sofbware company offering a plaiform care managenment solution for connnercial insurance carriers as well as Medicald /
Medicare care management progranis,

Vice President of Product Management
Key member of the management team with responsibility for developing client specific solutions as
well as creating the vision driving overall product direction.
Accomplishments
* Visionary behind the base business solution platform for the care management marketplace.
« Developed messaging that was instrumental in landing first commercial payer accounts (>$9
million).
e Member of the Senior Management Team that successfully secured $7.5 million of B-round
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financing.

Landmark Solutions, LLC (A.K.A. BHN) Concord, NH September 1998 — September 2006
A regional managed behavioral healthcare company, national employee assistance program, and IT consulting group.
Vice President of Managed Care Services (7/03 — 8/06)
Director of Behavioral Health Services (8/98 — 7/03)
Complete responsibility for the managed care product including $3.5 million operating budget, $18
million clinical capitation, strategic planning, vision, provider contracting, and oversight of five
departments. Worked closely with IT to develop and implement innovative and efficient processes
and systems to support process improvement, operational compliance, reporting and analysis, and
workflow integration.
Accomplishments
¢ Re-contracted provider network to simplify contracts and maximize flexibility in bringing on new
business lines.
» Initiated and implemented on-line patient registration process and automated attendant resulting in
net operational savings of 3.5%.
* Implemented a new Qutpatient Treatment Report to reign in escalating outpatient claims costs
resulting in clinical savings of 4.5%.
« Met aggressive budget requirements by impiementing tighter monitors on inpatient utilization
resulting in a net savings of 10.6%.
¢ Brought credentialing process in-house resuiting in a 66% reduction in operating costs.
» Initiated and successfully implemented a complete overhaul of the utilization management
program resuiting in improved NCQA delegation scoring from the low 60's to 100 percent.
» Collaborated with the director of information and technology to develop and implement a provider
Web portal allowing providers to submit updated clinical information directly to BHN/Landmark
Solutions’.

CNR Health, Inc. Milwaukee, W1 August 1991 — September 1998
A natlonal company offering medical, behavioral health, disability, and worker’s compensatlon management services, employee
assistanee programs, aud software development,
Director of Case Management .
Directly responsible for the care management business unit including medical and behavioral heaith
utilization management, case management, disability management and workers compensation
management.
Accomplishments
* Numerous positions of increasing responsibility during seven-year tenure: Behavioral Health Case
Manager, Clinical Operations Manager, Director of Behavioral Health, Director of Case
Management.
o Directly responsible for a $2.5 million dollar operating budget.

North Dakota State University, Fargo, ND
Bachelor of Science In Psychology, 5/87
Minor: Statistics

Marquette University, Milwaukee, Wi

Master of Science in Clinical Psychology, 8/89

Thesis: Self-control deficits in depression: The contingent relationship between expectancies, evaluations
and reinforcements.

References -
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i, L.M.H.C.

EXPERIENCE Lahey Health Behavioral Services RNay 2001 - present

(formerly known as Northeast Belavioral Health and I E.S.)
Multiple positions within the agency listed below

In-Home Therapy and Therapeutic Mentoring
DIRECTOR Dec 2011 - present

Lawrence, MA
Massachuselis state-wide Children’s Belavioral Healih Initiative (CBI): a short-termn
intensive program to stabilize at-risk children and their families

e Expansion of the Lawrence In-Home Therapy and Therapeutic
Mentoring programs into the Lowell area

+  Currently overseeing a staff of 100 professionals who support 400
children and their families

e Providing fiscal oversight and supervision of a $3 million budget,
resulting in a $300,000 profit for FY 2013

¢ Partnering with schools, healthcare systems, state agencies and third-

party payers

In-Home Therapy and Therapeutic Mentoring
DIRECTOR July 2010 - Dec 2011
Haverhill, MA

o Implementation of In-Home Therapy and Therapeutic Mentoring
program at a new location

o  Expansion from 2 to 30 employees who supported 200 children and
their families

¢ 24 hour emergency on-call supervisor

e Responsible for recruitment, training, and supervision; providing
clinical oversight and direction as necded

o Supervision of Master’s level clinicians seeking licensure

Emergency Services
CRISIS CONSULTANT Aug 2003 - present

o BEvaluate patients within the community and in emergency rooms
who present with mental health, substance abuse, and safety issues to
determine if hospitalization or other placement is necessary

o Consult with family, friends, police, therapists, physicians, nurses
and psychiatrists if necessary to locate appropriate placement and
obtain insurance approval




EDUCATION

OTHER
EXPERIENCES

Shortridgo Academy
Milton, NH
DIRECTOR OF STUDENT LIFE Oct 2008 - July 2010

Co-ed advlescent therapeutic boarding school

o Managed the Counseling Director and Milieu Coordinator

¢ Liaison for Educational Consultants and parents

o Responsible for training and emergency protocols

o Implemented Positive Youth Development into school comnumity
Cornerstones

CLINICAL DIRECTOR Mar 2007 - Oct 2008

Latency age residential program and therapeutic day school

o Supervised clinicians who provided individual and group therapy

o Provided clinical oversight to a therapeutic day school

o Collaborated with Department of Social Services and Department of
Mental Health

o Aligned and inspired collaboration and consistency between direct
care staff, school staff, and clinicians with regard to core values and
mission as a member of the administrative team

Boston University April 2014
School of Management - Executive Education

Institute for Non-profit Management and Leadership
Boston, MA

Nonprofit Management and Leadership Certificate

Salem State College July 2001
Salem, MA

M.S. Commseling and Psychological Services

3.94 G.P.A. with Honors

Colorado College May 1983
Colorado Springs, CO
B.A., dual major: Political Science and Econowics

Board member of Haverhill/Lawrence DCF Arca Board

o Member of the Trauma nformed Leadership Teams in both the
Lawrence and Lowell DCF offices

e Trauma Focused Cognitive Behavioral Therapy Supervisor
(Massachusetts Child Trauma Project)

o Member of Lawrence Mayor’s Behavioral Health Task Force
Chosen by H.E.S. for Ross Greene’s year-long training in
Collaborative Problem Solving ~Train the Trainer




Contractor Name: Behavioral Health and Developmental Services of Strafford County Ine,, DBA
Community Partners

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Brian Collins Executive Director $184,996 0% 0%

Chris Kozak COO $82,399 0% 0%

David Haskell $74,000 5% $3,700

Director Adult Services BH




FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Continuum of Care, Concord Community [.easing 11
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1  State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant St.
Office of Human Services Concord, NH 03301
1.3  Contractor Name 1.4  Contractor Address
122 Market St.
Families In Transition Manchester, NH 03101
1.5  Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number 05-95-42-423010-7927
(603) 641-9441 102-500731 June 30, 2016 $93,677
1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
Eric D. Borrin (603) 271-9558
1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
/chu,u«w @Laza,«,uga// Maureen Beauregard, President

1.13 Acknowledgement: State of NH | County of Hillsborough

On4/ 6/ Bfore the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block
1.12,

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

RUTH A. SYREK, Notary Pubiic
My Commission Expires October 16, 2018
(Sea] opel

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justke of the Peace

Ruth Syrek, Administrative Assistant, Notary Public

1.14 State Agency Signature 1.15 Name and itle of State Agency Signatory

VA
/4&8&\(‘90_14@ / /&S"/u\_—\_,

1.16 Apf)roval(?ﬁe‘ﬁ.ﬂ. I‘eﬁiﬁ-t of Administration, Division of Personnel (i if appltcable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

ey Aser /Muv»ﬁ\%bmw{ n /

1.18 Approval bﬂhe (P(ernor and Ex¥cutive Godncil

By:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/JACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also fumnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each

Contractor Initials: IBD
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certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers” Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials: [M
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Continuum of Care Program
CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT

1.

1.1.

Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the
State are contingent upon receipt of federal funds under the Continuum of Care Grant.
The State has applied for the Continuum of Care Grant and will continue to perform due
diligence in the application process. However, the State makes no representation that it
will receive the funds. In no event shall the State be liable for costs incurred or
payment of any services performed by the Contractor prior to the State’s receipt of
federal funds applied for in the Continuum of Care Grant.

2. SERVICES

3.

2.1.

2.2,

2.3.

24.

2.5.

Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds from the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Continuum of Care Program, the Contractor
shall provide a permanent housing program that shall serve twelve (12) homeless
individuals and families with disabilities.

The goal of this program is to facilitate the movement of homeless individuals and
families to permanent housing and maximum self-sufficiency.

To be eligible for contract services, individuals and families must be homeless as
defined in HUD regulations. The Contractor must obtain and retain appropriate
documentation.

The Contractor shall provide these services according to HUD regulations as outlined in
Public Law 102-550, 24 CFR Part 578 Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid
Transition to Housing: Continuum of Care Program interim rule, and other written HUD
policies and directives.

Each program participant shall have an employment assessment and employment
goals included in the individual service plan, as appropnate.

PROGRAM REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

The Contractor shall submit the following reports:

3.1.1. Annual Performance Report: Within thirty (30) days after the Completion Date, an
Annual Performance Report (APR) shall be submitted to the BHHS that
summarizes the results of the Project Activities, showing in particular how the
Project Activities have been performed. The Annual Performance Report shall
be in the form required or specified by the State.

3.1.2. Other Reports as requested by the State.

All programs under this contract are required to be licensed to provide client level data
into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS).
Programs under this contract must be familiar with and follow NH HMIS policy, including
specific information that is required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time
required for data entry. Current NH HMIS policy can be accessed electronically through
the following website: http://www.nh-hmis.org.

Failure to submit the above reports or enter data into NH-HMIS in a timely fashion could
result in the delay or withholding of reimbursements until such reports are received or
data entries are confirmed by the BHHS.
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4. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION

41.

4.2.

4.3.
4.4.

4.5.

The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff attend all meetings or trainings
requested by the BHHS. To the extent possible, BHHS shall notify the contractor of the
need to attend such meetings five working days in advance of each meeting.

The Bureau Administrator of BHHS or designee may observe performance, activities
and documents under this Agreement; however, these personnel may not unreasonably
interfere with contractor performance.

The Contractor shall inform BHHS of any staffing changes.

Contract records shall be retained for a period of five (5) years following completion of
the contract and receipt of final payment by the Contractor, or until an audit is
completed and all questions arising there from are resolved, whichever is later.

Changes to the contract services that do not affect its scope, duration, or financial
limitations may be made upon mutual agreement between the Contractor and the
BHHS.

5. FINANCIAL

5.1.

Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor shall utilize
Continuum of Care Program agreement value specified in Exhibit B of this agreement
from the HUD Continuum of Care Program, for contract services.

5.1.1. Operating Expenses

5.1.1.1. Eligible operating expenses include maintenance and repair of housing,
property taxes and insurance (including property and car), scheduled
payments to reserve for replacement of major systems of the housing
(provided that the payments must be based on the useful life of the
system and expected replacement cost), building security for a structure
where more than fifty percent of the units or area is paid for with grant
funds, utilities (including electricity, gas and water), furniture and
equipment.

5.1.1.2. Ineligible costs include rental assistance and operating costs in the same
project, operating costs of emergency shelter- and supportive service-
only facilities, maintenance and repair of housing where the costs of
maintaining and repairing the housing are included in the lease.

5.1.2. Supportive Services

5.1.2.1. Eligible supportive services costs must comply with all HUD regulations
in 24 CFR 578.53. Eligible services are available to those individuals
actively participating in the permanent housing program.

5.1.2.2. Eligible costs include mental health services, case management
services, salaries of Contractor staff providing supportive services,
reasonable one-time moving costs (truck rental and hiring a moving
company), child-care costs for establishing and operating child care, and
providing child-care vouchers for children from families experiencing
homelessness (including providing meals and snacks and
comprehensive and coordinated developmental activities), education
services, employment assistance and job training skills, housing search
and counseling services, legal services (fees charged by licensed
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5.1.2.3.

attorneys and by person(s) under the supervision of licensed attorneys,
for advice and representation in matters that interfere with the homeless
individual or family's ability to obtain and retain housing), outpatient
health services, transportation services, and utility deposits.

ineligible costs include staff training, fundraising, conference attendance,
and court fines incurred by participants.

5.1.3. Rental Assistance

CA/DHHS/100213
FIT CCLII

5.1.3.1.

5.1.3.2.

5.1.3.3.

5.1.34.

5.1.3.5.

5.1.3.6.

5.1.3.7.

5.1.3.8.

Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for homeless individuals
and families. Rental assistance cannot be provided to a program
participant who is already receiving rental assistance, or living in a
housing unit receiving rental assistance or operating assistance through
other federal, State, or local sources.

The rental assistance may be short term, up to 3 months of rent; medium
term, for 3-24 months; or long-term, for longer than 24 months of rent
and must be administered in accordance with the policies and
procedures established by the Continuum as set forth in 24 CFR
578.7(a)}(9) and 24 CFR 578.51.

Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to
exceed 2 months of rent. An advance payment of the last month’s rent
may be provided to the landlord, in addition to the security deposit and
payment of first month’s rent.

Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit if the rent is reasonable.
The contractor must determine whether the rent charged for the unit
receiving rental assistance is reasonable in relation to rents being
charged for comparable unassisted units, taking into account the
location, size, type, quality, amenities, facilities, and management and
maintenance of each unit.

The Contractor may use grant funds in an amount not to exceed one
month’s rent to pay for any damage to housing due to the action of a
program participant.

Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housing codes,
licensing requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act,
and any other requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is
located regarding the condition of the structure and operation of the
housing or services.

The Contractor must provide one of the following types of rental
assistance: Tenant-based, Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental
assistance as described by HUD in 24 CFR 578.51.

Tenant-based rental assistance is rental assistance in which program
participants choose housing of an appropriate size in which to reside.
When necessary to facilitate the coordination of supportive services,
recipients and sub recipients may require program participants to live in
a specific area for their entire period of participation, or in a specific
structure for the first year and in a specific area for the remainder of their
period of participation. Shot and medium term rental assistance
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5.1.3.9.

5.1.3.10.

5.1.3.11.

51.41.

. Leasing:

provided under the Rapid ReHousing program component must be
tenant based rental assistance.

Sponsor-based rental assistance is provided through contracts between
the recipient and sponsor organization. A sponsor may be a private,
nonprofit organization, or a community mental health agency established
as a public nonprofit organization. Program participants must reside in
housing owned or leased by the sponsor.

Project-based rental assistance is provided through a contract with the
owner of an existing structure, where the owner agrees to lease the
subsidized units to program participants. Program participants will not
retain rental assistance if they move.

For project-based, sponsor-based, or tenant-based rental assistance,
program participants must enter into a lease agreement for a term of at
least one year, which is terminable for cause. The leases must be
automatically renewable upon expiration for terms that are a minimum of
one month long, except on prior notice by either party.

. Administrative Costs

Administrative costs include: Preparing program budgets, schedules and
amendments, developing systems for assuring compliance with program
requirements, developing interagency agreements and agreements with
sub recipients and contractors to carry out program activities, preparing
reports and other documents related to the program for submission to
HUD, evaluating program results against stated objectives, travel costs
incumred for official business in carrying out the program, administrative
services performed under third party contracts or agreements (including
such services as general legal services, accounting services, and audit
services), and other costs for goods and services required for
administration of the program (including such goods and services as
rental or purchase of equipment, insurance, utilities, office supplies, and
rental and maintenance, but not purchase, of office space).

Leasing may include leasing one structure or leasing units scattered

throughout a community.

5.1.5.1.

5.1.5.2.

5.1.5.3.

5.1.54.

5.1.5.5.

Rent paid may only reflect actual costs and must be reasonable in
comparison to rents charged in the area for similar housing units.
Documentation of rent reasonableness must be kept on file by the
Contractor.

The portion of rent paid with grant funds may not exceed HUD-
determined fair market rents.

The Contractor shall pay individual landlords directly; funds may not be
given directly to participants to pay leasing costs.

The Contractor may pay the landlord up to one month’s rent for any
damages to the units by participants.

The Contractor cannot lease a building that it already owns to itself.
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5.2.

5.3.

54.

5.5.

5.1.5.6. Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housing codes,
licensing requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act,
and any other requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is
located regarding the condition of the structure and operation of the
housing or services.

The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD regulations
and policies described in 24 CFR 578.73 (a) (b) (c).

5.2.1. The contractor must match all grant funds except for leasing funds, with no less
than twenty-five percent of funds or in-kind contributions from other sources.

5.2.2. Match requirements are to be documented with each payment request.

The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible and
allowable costs as stated in Section 5.1 Exhibit A. The Contractor must have written
approval from the State prior to billing for any other expenses.

The Contractor may charge program participants rent and utilities (heat, hot water);
however, the amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified in HUD
regulations (24 CFR 583.315). Other services such as cable, air conditioning,
telephone, Internet access, cleaning, parking, pool charges, etc. are at the participant’s
option.

The contractor shall have any staff charged in full or part to this contract or counted as
match complete weekly or bi-weekly timesheets.
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METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMEN

Continuum of Care Program

The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A —
Continuum of Care Program.

This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

NH General Fund: Not applicable

Federal Funds:

CFDA #: 14.267

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development
Program Title: Continuum of Care Program

Total Amount Continuum of Care Program;

July 1, 2015 - June 30, 2016: not to exceed $93,677

Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program;
Supportive Services: $15,956

Leasing or Rental Assistance: $75,411

Administrative costs: $2,310

Total program amount; $93,677

1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund
the Contractor for operations, supportive services, leasing, rental assistance and
administration utilizing funds provided through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) Continuum of Care Program, in an amount not to exceed and for the
time period specified above.

2. REPORTS

As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1. Audited Financdial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in
accordance with the regulations that implement OMB Circular A-133. Three (3) copies
of the audited financial report shall be submitted within thirty (30} days of the completion
of said report to the State.

2.2. Where the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, within
ninety (90) days after the Completion or Termination Date, one copy of an audited
financial report shall be submitted to the State. Said audit shall be conducted utilizing
the guidelines set forth in “Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program
Activities, and Functions” by the Comptroller General of the United States.
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3. PROJECT COSTS: PAYMENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW BY THE STATE

3.1

3.2.

3.3.

Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean all
expenses directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the
Project Activities, as determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in
accordance with Public Law 102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in
OMB Circular A-87 as revised from time to time and with the rules, regulations, and
guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit subcontractors shall meet the
requirements of OMB Circular A-122.

Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in
consideration of the satisfactory completion of the services to be performed under this
Agreement, the State agrees to fund the Contractor for operations, supportive services,
leasing, rental assistance and administration utilizing funds provided through the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development Title X1V Housing programs under the
Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act (HEARTH Act),
Subtitle A-Housing Assistance (Public Law 102-550) in an amount not to exceed as
specified above. Reimbursement requests for all Project Costs shall be submitted on a
monthly basis and accompanied by an invoice from the Contractor for the amount of
each requested disbursement along with a payment request form as designated by the
State, which shall be completed and signed by the Contractor. The Contractor shall
provide additional financial information if requested by the State to verify expenses.

Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the
Services, and upon receipt of the Annual Performance Report, Termination Report or
Audited Financial Report, the State may review all Project Costs incurred by the
Contractor and all payments made to date. Upon such review the State shall disaliow
any items of expenses that are not determined to be allowable or are determined to be
in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed
expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such disallowance. If the State disallows
costs for which payment has not yet been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs. Any
amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this agreement are subject to recapture
pursuant to 24 CFR Subsection 576.55. The funds authorized to be expended under
this Agreement shall be used only for operations, supportive services, leasing, rental
assistance and administration or reimbursement for expenditures for operations,
supportive services, leasing, and rental assistance and administration, provided by the
Contractor for the project period and operating years of the Continuum of Care Program
as approved by HUD and in accordance with the Continuum of Care Program
Regulations, published at 24 CFR Part578.

4. USE OF GRANT FUNDS

4.1.

4.2.

The State agrees to provide payment for actual costs, up to the not to exceed amount
for the Continuum of Care Program as specified in this Exhibit, as defined by HUD
under the provisions of P.L. 102-550 and applicable regulations.

The Contractor may amend the contract budget through line item increases, decreases
or the creation of new line items provided these amendments do not exceed the
contract price. Such amendments shall only be made upon written request to and
written approval from the State.
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4.3. Conformance to OMB Circular A-110: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance
with procedures, requirements, and principles specified in OMB Circular A-110.

5. CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

5.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting
procedures which assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant funds and
any required nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed in
direct operations of the Contractor.

5.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with
Attachment G of A-102, “Standards of Contractor Financial Management Systems” or
such equivalent system as the State may require. Requests for payment shall be made
according to EXHIBIT B, Section 3.2 of this Agreement.
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include ali
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that ail applicants for services shali be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or ata
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his

attorney or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report; A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. if any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with ali rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials M

06127114 Page 3of § Date4/6/15



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistieblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistieblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor’s performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor’s performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials ' @ﬁ
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor’s performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promuigated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials M
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4,

CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

101

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract, is deleted and the following

subparagraph is added:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all claims of bodily injury, death or property

CU/DHHS/110713

damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $1,000,000 per occurrence
with additional general liability umbrella insurance coverage of not less than $5,000,000 per
occurrence; and
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-630, Title V, Subtiie D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2, Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7.  Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name:Families in Transition

April 6, 2015
Date

ame. Maureen Beaure
Tile: president
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title Vi

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title |V

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that;

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name: Families in Transition

April 6, 2015
Date

Name: Maureen Beaure
Title: President
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

L n u; "o

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and

“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and

Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the

attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participantin a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F — Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor [nitials !1 a Z‘Q
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participantin a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14, The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: Families in Transition

April 6, 2015
Date

Maureen Beauredard
President
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 734), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not inciude
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
{(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: Families in Transition

April 6, 2015
Date

Nam¢: Maureen Beauré&gard
Title:  president
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regulary for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal pragrams either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may resuit in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor’s

representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994,

Contractor Name: Famjjlies in Transition

April 6,2015 @ﬂﬂm.&ﬁu%
Date Nameé: Maureen Beaur&gard

Title: president

Exhibit H - Cerlification Regarding Contractor IniﬁalsM,

Environmental Tobacco Smoke

CUIDHHS/110713 Page 1 of 1 Date_4/6/15



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

1) Definitions.

a. ‘Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such termin section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. ‘“Covered Entity” has the meaning given such termin section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. “HITECH Act’ means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA" means the Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by

Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.
Contractor Initials
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“Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

“Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not

secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning

established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH
Act.

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
1. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
1. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
HI. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’'s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate
agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. if Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164,522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. g ?
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e. Segregation. |f any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

/U/+ DDH'/'f\‘ Families in Transition

The State Name of the Contractgr

Signature of Authorized Representative

Maureen Beauregard

Name of Authérized Representative ! Name of Authorized Representative
4‘§SOC I#ﬂ [O)ﬂ’W/J\p/Mresi dent
Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative
2/ * April 6, 2015
Date . Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

SOONOOORAWN =2

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: Families in Transition

April 6, 2015
Date

. : Maureen Beauregatd
Title:  president

Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials M_
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: ___ 825360390

2. Inyour business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

X NO YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:

Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Iniﬁals_m

Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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State of Nefw Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that FAMILIES IN TRANSITION is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation
formed May 13, 1994. I further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed

W the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
22 this 10" day of April, A.D. 2015

Zy Skl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

l, Dick Anagnost , do hereby certify that:
{(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. | am a duly elected Officer of Families in Transition
{Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on _April 6, 2015
(Date)

RESOLVED: Thatthe President

(Title of Contract Signatory)
is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the 6 day of _April , 2015

(Date Contract Signed)
4. Maureen Beauregard is the duly elected _President

(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)
of the Agency.

e bras )

(Signature of the Elected Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of Hillsborough

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 6 day of _April , 2015

By Dick Anagnost
{Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

(Notary Public/JustCe of the Peace)

(INOTARY SEAL)
RUTH A. SYREK, Notary Public
My Commission Expires October 16, 2018

Commission Expires:

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations July 1, 2005
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal
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ACORD..

lient#: 53565

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

FAMIL6

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
01/16/2015

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCE

R, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

Concord, NH 03302-1260

PRODUCER ﬁg“EACT
Daws.TowIe Morrill & Everett rAIHg,NNEo, Ext): 603 225-6611 H’Akl)é Noj: 603-225-7935
115 Airport Road E-MAIL
ADDRESS:
P O Box 1260

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

iNsuURER A - Philadelphia Insurance Co.

{NSURED

Families in Transition,

Inc

122 Market St :::z::: :):
Manchester, NH 03101 :
INSURERE :
INSUR_ER F:

insurer B : AmTrust North America, Inc.

COVERAGES

CERTIFICATE NUMBER:

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

e TYPE OF INSURANCE &Ds?a" %V%R POLICY NUMBER (ﬂﬁh%%)'v%% ﬁﬂk%%fv%% LIMITS
A | GENERAL LIABILITY PHPK1272568 01/01/2015]01/01/2016 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000
~y] DAMAGE TO RENTED
X| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PREMISES (Ea occurrence) | $100,000
CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) | $5,000
|| PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | 51,000,000
N GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - coMpP/oP AGG | $3,000,000
_] POLICY B Loc $
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY PHPK1272568 01/01/2015(01/01/2016 oy o -c “MT 11,000,000
X| anv auto BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
. AL OWNED SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | §
X NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
| /A HIRED AUTOS AUTOS {Per accident)
$
A | X|UMBRELLALIAB | X | occur PHUB484416 01/01/2015|01/01/2016 EACH OCCURRENCE 5,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $5,000,000
DED I XT RETENTION $10000 $
WORKERS COMPENSATION WC STATU- OTH-

B | AND EMPLOYERS: LIABILITY YIN WWC3115830 01/01/2015(01/01/2016 X [TORY LIMITS ER
OPFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED? | N |N1A EL. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000
{Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA emPLOYEE| $1,000,000
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - PoLIcY LimiT | $1,000,000

***Workers Compensation***
3A State: NH

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

State of New Hamps
Services

129 Pleasant St
Concord. NH 03301

hire,

Department of Health and Human

Bureau of Homeless and Housing

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
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